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Our Vision

To be a pre-eminent service provider offering a
uniquely integrated and customized corporate
consultancy solutions to mid-size listed companies
and private companies in the Greater China.
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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record
of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed
issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of
this document, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this document.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of B M
Intelligence International Limited collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM for
the purpose of giving information with regard to B M Intelligence
International Limited. The Directors having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:
() the information contained in this document is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (i) there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
in this document misleading; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this
document have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Director(s)”)
of B M Intelligence International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am pleased to present our
annual report for the year ended 30 April 2008.

The global economy experienced significant fluctuations during the
year ended 30 April 2008 when the major stock markets around the
world reached historical or recent peaks around early November.
However, sentiment worsened as the consequences of the sub-prime
mortgage crisis in the United States unfold, and the major indices
have suffered substantial corrections. On the other hand, inflation
pressure picked up in the second half of 2007, mainly due to
higher food prices brought about by the global food inflation, strong
domestic demand and upsurge of energy and commodity prices. The
inflationary environment had pushed up wages and rents in Hong
Kong. Due to these upward revisions in costs, the loss attributable
to the equity holders widened to approximately HK$3,446,000 from
HK$365,000 of last financial year.

The Group, as always, recognised the importance of professionalism
and continued its united vision to be a pre-eminent service provider
offering uniquely integrated and customized corporate consultancy
solutions to mid-size listed companies and private companies as
well as high net worth individuals in the Greater China Region and
acting as their one-stop solution provider to grow their businesses.
However, in view of the deterioration of market conditions as a result
of the sub-prime mortgage crisis and the globalisation in the financial
markets, Hong Kong’s financial markets will also be affected because
of its openness nature. Accordingly, the Board is of the view that
it is a good opportunity to realise its investments in the asset
valuation services and wealth and fund management services, while
maintaining the corporate services business segments, including
professional translation services, company secretarial services and
business, accounting and corporate development advisory services,
details of which have been disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 May 2008.

In the coming vyears, the Group will focus in implementing an
effective cost control with a view to bring up a better return to
its shareholders. Looking ahead, apart from the Group’s existing
business, the Board, with their professional expertise and experience,
is also looking for new business opportunities so as to diversify
the business scope of the Group. The Board will proactively seek
potential investment opportunities that can enhance value to the
shareholders.

We believe the start of a new era will accelerate the Group’s growth.
The Group is well-prepared to take up the new challenges ahead
and committed to strive for better financial performance. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the management and staff for their great dedication and
efforts. We would also like to thank our shareholders, stakeholders,
and clients for their continuing support and confidence in us.

WONG Sai Hung, Oscar
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2008

Chairman’s Statement
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Managgment Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

For the year ended 30 April 2008, the revenue of the Group
was approximately HK$88,760,000, representing a growth of
37% compared to that of the last year (2007: approximately
HK$64,952,000). The increase in revenue was mainly attributed to
our business segment of Funds and Wealth Management Services.
However, the Group has recorded a net loss attributable to the equity
holders of approximately HK$3,446,000 (2007: loss of approximately
HK$365,000) due to the increase in the staff costs and office rental
for the expansion in the number of staff and the impairment loss on
available-for-sale financial assets recognised during the year.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Corporate Services

The Group, renowned for its diversified scope of corporate services
in the market, has continued to focus its efforts in expanding and
enhancing our integrated and comprehensive services provided to
our clients. During the year under review, the corporate services
segment recorded approximately 13.6% increase in revenue to
approximately HK$19,492,000 (2007: approximately HK$17,162,000).

Professional Translation Services

BMI Professional Translation Services Limited (“BMI Translation”),
the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, specialises in providing
professional translation services. To meet the ever diversified needs
of the market, we endeavoured to further recruit and train competent
translators who have the talents, skills, and abilities to provide
quality translation services. With the increasing numbers of new
translation staff, we aim at providing continuous professional on-the-
job training to our young and dynamic team in order to serve the
market which there is a great demand for quality translation services.

In addition to our well-established Hong Kong and Shenzhen
translation team, a new team in our Shanghai office has been
recently formed to provide synergy for the Group.

Looking forward, we will deploy more resources to enhance our
service quality, in a bid to further strengthen its position and extend
its market penetration.

Company Secretarial Services

BMI Corporate Services Limited (“BMI Corporate Services”), the
Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, one of the leading professional
services providers in Hong Kong, provides integrated and
comprehensive company secretarial services to both listed and
private companies.

The business world has become more and more complicated
nowadays. Enterprises have to bear more risks and pay more
attention to comply with the ever-changing legislation of different
jurisdictions and the compliance issues. During the year under
review, BMI Corporate Services, as a leading corporate services
provider in the industry, kept on to provide professional and practical
advices on the corporate governance issues and the relevant
legislation updating, etc. Nowadays, the awareness of the corporate
governance is increased and which is a benefit for the Company in
the long run. Looking forward, BMI Corporate Services shall continue
to make timely updates and deliver its expertise company secretarial
support as well as corporate governance assessment to meet with
the needs of our clients.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Corporate Services (Cont’d)

Company Secretarial Services (Cont’d)

IBC Corporate Services Limited (“IBC Corporate Services”), the
Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, providing offshore company
formation and agency services, has continued to grow to become a
professional trusted offshore company services provider. During the
year under review, IBC Corporate Services endeavoured to improve
its product quality and sales skills. Leveraged on the concerted
efforts of the team, IBC Corporate Services proved to be a trusted
agency locally for serving professional intermediaries such as law
firms, accounting firms and business consulting firms. IBC Corporate
Services has developed in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
market and being a trusted offshore company provider in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

The division’s scope of service was further extended through the
totalling approximately 14.42% acquisition in the capital of Union
Services and Registrars Inc. (“Union Registrars”). Union Registrars
is one of the premier share registration service providers in Hong
Kong, whose clientele comprises of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) believes
that further acquisition will further exhance its one-stop integrated
and comprehensive services to our clients.

The synergies among BMI Corporate Services, IBC Corporate
Services and Union Registrars shall continue to benefit the division
and the Group as a whole, strengthening the positive momentum for
further expansion and growth.

Assets Valuation Services

BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI Appraisals”), our 45% owned
associated company, is an all-rounded valuation consulting firm
providing worldwide professional services covering basically
real estate valuations, plant & machinery valuations, inventory
valuations, business valuations, intangible asset valuations, balance
sheet valuations, brand name & goodwill valuations and financial
derivatives’ valuations.

During the year under review, BMI Appraisals has successfully
completed 2 real estate valuation projects for listing purposes in
Hong Kong, 19 real estate valuation projects, 13 business valuation
projects, 1 intangible asset valuation project, 1 asset valuation
project, 1 option valuation project and 1 oilfield valuation project
for public documentation purposes in Hong Kong and 1 real estate
valuation project for listing purpose in Singapore.

BMI Appraisals has been actively involved in valuations for listing,
merger and acquisition, corporate financing, accounting and taxation
matters. Its professional team has been expanded to cope with the
business potentials in the PRC market, the Asia-Pacific regions and
other overseas markets. With its solid foundation and the endeavors
of its team, the Board believes that BMI Appraisals will soon become
a well-known appraisal firm.
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Managgment Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Corporate Services (Cont’d)

Business, Accounting and Corporate Development Advisory
Services

The provision of business, accounting and corporate development
advisory services is provided through BMI Consultants Limited, BMI
Consultant (Shenzhen) Limited and BMI Corporate Advisory (Shanghai)
Limited whose importance to the Group’s businesses has continued
to diminish. Nevertheless, the division’s turnover stood at same level
as compared with that of the last year.

Funds and Wealth Management

Last year, the market conditions are challenging. Our Research Team
enables us to remain resilience under the volatile markets due to the
sub-prime loan problem.

To meet the needs of our customers from Hong Kong and Mainland
China, we have also expanded our sales forces. We have allocated
more resources in IT infrastructure which has strengthened our
internal operation platform and enable us to provide better quality of
service to our customers.

GROUP CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Shareholders’ Funds

The Group’s total shareholders’ funds is approximately
HK$52,820,000 which was increased compared to approximately
HK$36,996,000 in the previous year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 April 2008, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$33,529,000 (2007: approximately HK$25,966,000).
The current assets mainly comprised trade receivables of
approximately HK$2,884,000 (2007: approximately HK$5,600,000),
deposits, prepayments and other receivables of approximately
HK$7,981,000 (2007: approximately HK$1,258,000), financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$3,951,000 (2007:
Nil) and bank balances and cash of approximately HK$34,619,000
(2007: approximately HK$28,427,000). The Company intends to
finance the Group’s future operations, capital expenditure and other
capital requirements with the existing bank balances available.
The current liabilities mainly comprised accrued charges and other
payables of approximately HK$17,316,000 (2007: approximately
HK$10,181,000), bank loan due within one year of approximately
HK$143,000 (2007: approximately HK$109,000) and provision
for taxation of approximately HK$279,000 (2007: approximately
HK$91,000).

Capital Structure

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 August
2007, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders of
the Company with respect to the bonus issue of shares on the basis
of 3 bonus shares, credited as fully paid, for every 1 existing issued
share of the Company (the “Bonus Issue”). Upon the granting of
listing approval for the Bonus Issue by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), a total of 1,358,160,000 bonus
shares were issued on 10 September 2007.

Annual Report 2008 —=ZE/\F &%

EIGOIER (&)
LREH ()
RE BHRLEBEBFEEH

AEBBBHABERBHEARAR  BHEER
BECRIDERRA MABEEXBB AR (L
BIARARRHRERS @A REXEREM
R BHEXBEHAEE2EZEE AR
Do BEMU  WORTRE 2B EEE F—
FRELBARBIER -

EeRMEETH

EF2MSRB T - R RREREEEHK
MERERE AMEAKRERTEZRZE N
T ANEEDEERT S 288 -

RmREERTEARERSEFPZ2HFER A&
BREBEBAHEESRM AEBERE M RER
REERTELZER ETEZEEAEBEZA
MRETFE TLAKESUAREFPRHEER
B 2R -

SEEFERFRAEBESR

BRES

ANEBEZKEE S # % h= T 436,996,00078
JCIE SN & #952,820,0007% 7T °

RBEERMERR

R-ZENFMA=+H AEBZRHE
E % E 4 533,529,0008 T (— T T + F:
#925,966,0008 L) - MBEE T ZE B IEE K
E%EEIE%’U2884OOO}%7E(:$${¢ 4
5,600,000 ) & B RE R EAME UK
BRIE#77,981,0008 L (— T+ i #91,258,000

%m)ﬁ“iﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁzwﬁéﬁﬁ
3,951,000 T(Z 2t F: T)R KR TT
£ &3 & 4934,619,0000 7T (Z BT + F - @
28,427,0008 ;L) c AR E B IR B R T
%%$%EE&%@~E$%§&E@E@%
DREES RPABIELEEFERALE
b, FE - BR 18 4917,316,000/8 T (Z T T + & -
#910,181,000%8 ) * R —F RN E B Z RITE K
#9143,00078 T (= T Z + 4F : #109,000/5 7T )
T i TE B 49279,0008 T (T T L EFE Q
91,000/ 7T ) °

ﬂﬁ*ﬁﬁ
EARR —EELFENRZTNAAEITZR
iﬂﬁk‘\ CIHEBARNRARRRGE BT

Hﬁf%%%ﬁ?gf&sﬁ&ﬁﬂ&()\EE?'H’E%(E)Z%E‘E%
FTAIRE ([AL AR B 1T 1) BRFARLEANES
ZS’AETJ&%?EZ@°%§5§Hﬁ%é§<%ﬁﬁﬁ5ﬁ@ﬁ
(fﬂé‘%ﬁ?ﬁﬂ)ﬁﬂj?ﬁﬁ’\qﬁx% T2 LR AER

ARBER-_ZEZELFAATHBETARAH
1 ,358,1 60,000Hx



B M Intelligence International Limited 3 SZ2E& EKR SR 2 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY (Cont’d)

Capital Structure (Cont’d)

On 4 December 2007, the Company made the placement of
90,000,000 new shares to raise approximately HK$18,260,000 as the
net proceed and is used for general working capital of the Group.

As a result, the total number of issued share capital is 1,900,880,000
shares as at 30 April 2008.

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 30 April 2008, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$51,267,000 (2007: approximately HK$36,495,000), while its
current liabilities stood at approximately HK$17,738,000 (2007:
approximately HK$10,529,000). Other than the bank loan of
approximately HK$3,578,000 (2007: approximately HK$3,697,000),
the Group did not have any outstanding indebtedness as at 30
April 2008, and its shareholders’ funds amounted to approximately
HK$52,820,000 (2007: approximately HK$36,996,000). In this respect,
the Group had a net cash position, its working capital ratio (current
assets to current liabilities) was 2.89 (2007: 3.47); and its gearing
ratio (net debt to shareholders’ funds) was 0.068 (2007: 0.109).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The shareholders’ approval of the Company has been obtained
regarding the set aside of up to HK$20,000,000 for the investment
in each of property and stock on 29 August 2007 and the details of
the above has been published on the Company’s circular dated 6
August 2007. As at 30 April 2008, the Group has financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$3,951,000 (2007:
Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group did not have any capital commitments and significant
investments during the year ended 30 April 2008 (2007: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group had no material acquisitions/disposal of subsidiaries and
associated corporation during the year under review.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Segmental information of the Group is set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2008, the Group had 128 (2007: 90) employees
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are
determined with reference to the performance and experience of
individual employees. The total amount of employee remuneration
(including that of the Directors and retirement benefits scheme
contributions) of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$21,322,000 (2007: approximately HK$15,684,000).
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Managgm;ent Discussion and Analysis
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group may offer options to reward employees who
exhibit that they have offered significant contributions to the Group.
In order to enhance customer service standard, the Group not only
encourages employees to receive training and further education, but
also sponsors senior executives for higher education programs.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 April 2008, the Group does not have any property, plant
and equipment (2007: approximately HK$328,000), which was held
under finance leases.

As at 30 April 2008, operating lease prepayments and building with
respective carrying values of approximately HK$3,661,000 (2007:
approximately HK$3,743,000) and HK$1,712,000 (2007: approximately
HK$1,785,000) respectively were pledged with banks in order to
secure the Group’s banking facilities.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above and in this section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, the Directors do not have any future plans
for material investment or capital assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs cost in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. The Directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure of the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 April 2008, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities
(2007: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. YEUNG Sau Han, Agnes, aged 42, is the chief executive
officer and an executive director of the Company. Currently, Ms.
Yeung is also the director of Million Profit Group Limited, Full Union
Holdings Limited, Full Century International Limited and Asia First
Consultants Limited, all are subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Yeung
joined the Group in June 2007. She is responsible for the business
development of the Group. Ms. Yeung was graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a higher diploma in fashion design. Prior to joining
the Company, she worked in various garment companies for over
18 years. Ms. Yeung previously served as an executive director for
LeRoi Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, from 2002 to 2007 and she was
appointed as an executive director of PME Group Limited (Stock
Code: 379), a company whose shares are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, on 2 May 2007 and an executive director
of Tiger Tech Holdings Limited (“Tiger Tech”) (Stock Code: 8046)
and China Railway Logistics Limited (“China Railway”) (Stock Code:
8089), both companies whose shares are listed on the GEM board of
the Stock Exchange, on 11 July 2007 and 8 May 2008 respectively.

Ms. YU Sau Lai, aged 45, is an executive director of the Company.
Currently, Ms. Yu is also the director of Million Profit Group Limited,
Full Union Holdings Limited, Full Century International Limited and
Asia First Consultants Limited, all are subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. Yu joined the Group in July 2007. She is responsible for
the business development of the Group. Ms. Yu has 26 vyears
experience in administration of different kinds of companies and
also has extensive exposure in information technology and business
management in trading, wholesale and retail businesses. Currently
Ms. Yu is also the director and controlling shareholder of Samwo
Company and the director of Unique Interior Design (HK) Ltd., which
are engaged in interior design business. Ms. Yu was appointed as
an executive director of Tiger Tech on 11 July 2007. She is also the
chairman and member of nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. LO Wah Wai, aged 44, was the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company and resigned on 27 May 2008. Mr. Lo is
the co-founder of the Group and was responsible for the Group’s
sales and marketing activities. Prior to founding the Group, he
had more than eight years’ experience in auditing and business
consulting services in an international accounting firm, two years of
which were spent in the United States. Mr. Lo holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a master’'s degree in science from New Jersey
Institute of Technology, the United States. He is a practising member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lo is independent non-executive director of Sino-Tech International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 724) and Chongging Machinery &
Electric Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2722), both companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. WONG Wai Tung, aged 38, was the Chief Executive Officer and
an executive director of the Company and resigned on 27 May 2008.
Mr. Wong joined the Group in January 2001 and he was responsible
for the day-to-day management of the business of the Group,
attended to formulation and successful implementation of policies,
and assumed full accountability to the Board for all operations
of the Group. Working with the executive management team of
each core business division, he ensured the smooth operations
and development of the Group. Mr. Wong maintained a continuing
dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully
informed of all major business developments and issues of the
Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WONG Sai Hung, Oscar, aged 53, is the Chairman and a non-
executive director of the Company and he joined the Group in June
2008. Mr. Wong graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a higher diploma in Business Studies (Marketing). He joined
the board of Worldsec Asset Management Limited, which is in the
process of being acquired by Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (“ICBC (Asia)”) (Stock Code: 349). He has also
become a consultant to ICBC (Asia). In addition, Mr. Wong was
elected as an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (Stock Code: 388), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in April 2003 and
has twice been re-elected. Currently he also serves as consultant
and non-executive director for several companies, including but
not limited to being the non-executive director of One Asset
Management Limited, a company incorporated in Thailand, and ARN
Asian Enterprise Fund Limited, a company listed on the Irish Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Wong was the chief executive of BOCI-Prudential Asset
Management Limited (“BOCI-Prudential AMC”) from 1 January 2001
to 31 December 2005 and had been responsible for the overall
supervision and development of the business of the new company.
BOCI-Prudential AMC, which was serving over 300,000 clients and
managing HK$25 billion at the end of his tenure, is 64% owned by
BOC International and 36% by Prudential of the UK. When that joint
venture company was starting up, Mr. Oscar Wong was the regional
managing director of Prudential Portfolio Managers Asia during 1999
& 2000.

From 1977 to 1998, he spent over 21 years at LGT Asset
Management (“LGT AM”). AMVESCAP, the parent of INVESCO,
bought LGT AM in June of 1998 and Mr. Oscar Wong became the
deputy chief executive of their Asian office until he left in October.
He became the head of LGT AM’s Asian operation in January 1998
after returning from the LGT mutual fund marketing operation in
Canada that he had helped to establish in 1994. From 1987 to 1988
he was seconded to establish and run an investment management
affiliate in Taipei and he helped to start other similar joint ventures
in Thailand, Indonesia and China after returning to Hong Kong.
During his first 10 years with LGT in Hong Kong he managed equity
portfolios invested in Japan and other Pacific markets.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUI Tin Nang, aged 50, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lui joined the Group in September 2004. He
has obtained a bachelor degree in science from the University of
Leeds and a master degree in business administration from the
University of Bradford in United Kingdom. Mr. Lui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practicing)
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales,
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountant.
He has years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and
corporate finance. Mr. Lui is an independent non-executive director
of Vital Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1164) and
China Pipe Group Limited (Stock Code: 380), companies whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lui is also the members of audit, nomination and remuneration
committees of the Company.

Mr. CHEUNG Siu Chung, aged 32, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2007.
He holds a bachelor of laws degree (LLB) from University of London,
a postgraduate certificate in laws (PCLL) from University of Hong
Kong and a master of laws (Chinese and Comparative Law) (LLM)
from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is a solicitor of
The Law Society of Hong Kong and the affiliate of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). Having worked in law
firms and professional financial and accounting firms for more than
8 years, Mr. Cheung possesses extensive experience in handling
financial and accounting matters and dealing with legal matters. Mr.
Cheung is a non-executive director of Tiger Tech. He is also the
member of audit, nomination and remuneration committees of the
Company.

Mr. ORR Joseph Wai Shing, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Orr joined the Group in
June 2008. He worked for multinational companies including Time
Warner, Baker & McKenzie, EDAW and Hyatt International as well
as professional firm KPMG in the past 20 years. He is a Certified
Public Accountant in Washington, the United States of America (the
“USA”) and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and CPA Australia. He received an MBA from Kellogg School of
Management, Northwestern University and the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, a Master of Arts Degree in International
Business and International Financial Management from the University
of Reading and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Accounting
and Finance from Middlesex University and a Professional Diploma
in PRC corporate tax and auditing from Zhongshan University. Mr.
Joseph Orr is an executive director of his CPA firm “Joseph Orr
& Associates, CPA” in the USA and also an independent non-
executive director of Byford International Limited (Stock Code: 8272),
a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Orr
was also the independent non-executive director of Artfield Group
Limited (Stock Code: 1229), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also the member of audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. LAM Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 42, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lam joined the Group in
June 2008. He graduated from the Victoria University of Melbourne,
Australia with a Bachelor of Business Degree majoring in banking
and finance. He also earned a Master Degree in Applied Finance
from Macquarie University of Australia. Mr. Raymond Lam has 17
years extensive experience in business development and corporate
finance. He started his career in corporate banking; he then joined
one of the biggest oil company in the USA specializing in the area
of business development. Currently he is a senior manager of an
investment company in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-
executive director of ZZNode Technologies Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2371), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also the members of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Ho Wah, Terence, aged 37, was an independent non-
executive director of the Company and resigned on 23 June 2008.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in July 2007. He is a Chartered Financial
Analyst and holds a bachelor of engineering degree and a master
of science degree in real estate (general practice surveying) from
the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has extensive years of
experience in the field of finance. Mr. Chan is an independent non-
executive director of China Railway.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Wing Fun, Joannau, aged 38, joined the Group in
February 2002. She is a director of BMI Appraisals, our 45% owned
associate. Ms. Chan is responsible for the business development
and project management of valuation services of BMI Appraisals.
Ms. Chan has extensive experience in appraisals and consultancy, as
well as real estate agency in the Asia Pacific Rim. She is a member
of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor (General
Practice) and a Licensed Estate Agent in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Land Management from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr. CHENG Chak Ho, aged 38, is a director of BMI Appraisals. Dr.
Cheng is responsible for overall development of BMI Appraisals.
He has extensive experience in valuations of all kinds of properties,
plants and machinery, and businesses. Dr. Cheng has also been
involved in valuations of several major infrastructure projects in the
Asia Pacific Rim. He has experience in property agency, investment
dealings and property development. Among others, he is a senior
member of the Canadian Institute of Management, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and a member of American
Society of Mechanical Engineers. Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong, a Master
degree in Urban Design from the University of Hong Kong, a Master
of Science in Engineering (Mechanical Engineering) and a Doctor of
Philosophy in Economics from the University of Brighton, USA.
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Ms. WANG Jun, aged 35, is a director of our wholly-owned
subsidiary in Shenzhen, the PRC, BMI Consultants (Shenzhen)
Limited which specialises in the provision of business, accounting
and corporate development services. Ms. Wang has over 11 years
of experience in auditing, taxation and corporate advisory services
including manufacturing, trading and banking industries in the
PRC. She is a member of the China Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Wang holds a Bachelor degree in Accounting
from Nanjing University of Science & Technology, the PRC. She has
extensive experience in IPO and business consultancy services.

Mr. CHAN Wang Tat, aged 37, is the Director of BMI Funds. Mr.
Chan joined the Group in 2004 and he is responsible for expanding
the division’s business across Asia-Pacific region. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in the investment industry.
He had worked as an international money broker for 7 years and
had been involved in the investment fund industry for 9 years.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management are committed to maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance practices. The Group believes
that high standard of corporate governance provides a framework
and solid foundation for achieving, attracting and retaining the high
standard and quality of the Group’s management, promoting high
standards of sound internal control, accountability and transparency
to all shareholders and also meeting the expectations of the Group’s
various stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
to the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 30 April 2008. The details of our compliance may be found
in corporate governance report contained in the Company’s 2008
annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper
corporate governance structure of the Company. It is primarily
responsible for setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Group. Under the Board,
there are currently 3 subcommittees, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. All these
committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising
certain functions of the senior management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition and Board Practices

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. Details of the membership of the
Board (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) together
with their roles and functions are posted on the Company’s website
and such information shall be updated whenever there are changes.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, the Board comprises seven
Directors, including four executive Directors (the “Executive
Director(s)”) namely Mr. Lo Wah Wai, Mr. Wong Wai Tung, Ms. Yeung
Sau Han, Agnes and Ms. Yu Sau Lai; and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “Independent Non-executive Director(s)”)
namely Mr. Lui Tin Nang, Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence and Mr.
Cheung Siu Chung. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
The principle functions of the Board are to:

o establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

o determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

. approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment

and divestment proposals;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)
Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)
. oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and

integrity of internal controls, risk management, financial
reporting and compliance;

. approve the nominations of directors by nomination committee
and appointment of management team and/or external
auditors;

. ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and

communication with shareholders;

o monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, board members and shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and

o assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
Executive Directors and senior management, while reserving certain
key matters for its approval. As at 30 April 2008, more than one-
third of the Board is Independent Non-executive Directors so that
there is a strong element of independence in the Board to exercise
independent judgement. Moreover, all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise so that they
are of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight.

During the year, the attributes, skills and expertise among the
Directors are considered appropriate to effectively lead and
control the Group, taking into account the scope and nature of
its operations. The Directors have a mix of core competencies in
areas such as accounting and finance, business and management,
industry knowledge and marketing strategies. The experience and
qualifications of the Directors and senior management are set out
in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 11 to 15 of this Annual Report.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the Executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

. participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

o taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

U serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees, if
invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.
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TEERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least 3 Independent Non-executive Directors and all of them
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Pursuant to the Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of their
independence to the Company. The Company considers that all of
the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and will be met as necessary. During the year ended 30
April 2008, the Board held 4 regular meetings. The Directors can
attend meetings in persons or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association. Notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular Board
meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. The following
table shows the attendance of individual Directors at the regular
meetings held during the year:
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Number

Name of Directors of Meetings held

HE 817

EENs |- 1 4:|

Executive Directors BITESF

Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) EER (E/E) 4/4

Wong Wai Tung (Chief Executive Officer) FEE (7TEAAEH) 4/4

Yeung Sau Han, Agnes (appointed on 8 June 2007) BEBRR=ZFELFNANAEEZF) 4/4

Yu Sau Lai (appointed on 16 July 2007) REB(R=ZFEELFLA+ NHEZF) 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFERTES

Lui Tin Nang EPN: 4/4

Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 16 July 2007) BREE (R-ZFELFLATNHEZE) 2/4

Cheung Siu Chung (appointed on 16 July 2007) RIKAF (R=ZFEELFLAFNHEZF) 4/4

Board papers are circulated at least 3 days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
attend all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate governance
and statutory compliance when necessary. In addition, the Company
has maintained a procedure for the Directors to seek independent
professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense in discharging their duties to the Company. Moreover,
the Company Secretary prepares minutes and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Annual Report 2008

BB \FEH

EFENMHREFEERRTARL -ARE
=EH AEEFRERARNEESETARELZ
EH FHABRE ARMERSLEMREE
HEFged UNEARTERIEEXEARE
SRR B EE MO ARRBRIN—F
B RBEFEERERBILT RETEYAEAR
AZBER SKBUEXER HAXHALR
AR RAMENRMAEEES SR
FRImZEEURBRZRTE mESHLTHE
YREBBLE - RAIMENRFGH L
WAREREEELEBEBANE EERAE
BB R B -



B M Intelligence International Limited 3 SZ2E& EKR SR 2 A

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
nomination committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
nomination and retirement of Directors.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for one year. According to
the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the Directors are
required to retire from office at each annual general meeting (“AGM”),
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once in every three years. The Directors to retire every year
shall be those appointed by the Board during the year and those
who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities for the
Directors in relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Period

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, its is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Insurance for Directors

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board do not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEQ”) are segregated and performed by Mr. Lo
Wah Wai and Mr. Wong Wai Tung respectively. This segregation
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s and the CEOQO’s
responsibilities which allows a balance of power between the Board
and the management of the Group, and ensures their independence
and accountability. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship between the Chairman and the CEO.

Mr. Lo Wah Wai, as the Chairman during the year, has overall
responsibilities for providing leadership, vision and direction in the
development of the business of the Company. He ensures that:

. the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

. the responsibilities for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting and, where appropriate, taking into account any
matters proposed by each Director for inclusion in the agenda;

o good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and encourages all Directors to make full and
active participation to the affairs of the Group; and

o the Board acts in the best interests of the Group.

Mr. Wong Wai Tung, as the CEO during the year, was responsible
for the day-to-day management of the business of the Group,
attended to formulation and successful implementation of policies,
and assumed full accountability to the Board for all operations of
the Group. Working with the executive management team of each
core business division, he ensures the smooth operations and
development of the Group. He maintained a continuing dialogue with
the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all
major business developments and issues.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
the Board procedures are followed and for ensuring that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regarded to them when making
decisions. The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for
the Group’s compliance with the continuing obligations of the GEM
Listing Rules, The Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to the CG Code, the Company has set up a nomination
committee with a majority of the members thereof being Independent
Non-executive Directors. The nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 22 July 2005 and comprises a
majority of Independent Non-executive Directors, which schedules to
meet at least once a year. During the year, it was chaired by Mr. Lo
Wah Wai and all Nomination Committee members, with the exception
of Mr. Lo Wah Wai, are Independent Non-executive Directors. The
quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

. to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular

the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the Board;

o to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

o to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

. to review the Board structure, size and composition and the
independent element of the Board on an annual basis;

U to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and
. to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, 1 meeting of Nomination
Committee was held to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and make recommendation to the Board relating to the
renewal services of Independent Non-executive Directors. The
following table shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meeting of the Nomination Committee held during the year:

Name of Nomination Committee Members

REZATRAKS
Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) EER (£/E)
Lui Tin Nang =P N1

Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 16 July 2007)
Cheung Siu Chung (appointed on 16 July 2007)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the CG Code, the Company has set up a remuneration
committee with a majority of the members thereof being Independent
Non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has been established on 22 July 2005
and comprises a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors,
which schedules to meet at least once a year. During the year, it
was chaired by Mr. Lo Wah Wai and all Remuneration Committee
members, with the exception of Mr. Lo Wah Wai, are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction
of business is two.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of the
Remuneration Committee include:

. to assist the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest caliber and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across the
Company’s substantial, diverse and international business
operations;

. to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the
skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

o to review and determine specific remuneration packages for
each Executive Director and senior management by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time; and

. to administer the performance bonus scheme and the share
option scheme for the employees of the Company.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. The
recommended remuneration packages are subject to approval by the
Board.

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a) Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions
to Provident Fund) for each Executive Director/senior
management is recommended by the Remuneration Committee,
taking into account the performance of the individual, the
inflation price index and information from independent sources
on the rates of salary for similar jobs in a selected group of
comparable organisations.

(b) Fees
Fees paid/payable to the Executive Directors are determined
by the Board after considering the corporate and individual’s
relative performance against the comparable organisations.
The fees paid/payable to the Non-Executive Directors takes
into account factors such as effort and time spent, and
responsibilities of these Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the Executive Directors and senior management.
The criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved
from certain aspects of the Group’s business activities
against targets, together with an assessment of corporate and
individual’s performance during the year. Bonuses payable to
the Executive Directors/senior management are reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board to
ensure alignment of their interests with those of shareholders
of the Company.

Benefits in kind
Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

Directors’ share options

The Group operates a share option scheme for senior
management, employees and external consultants. The terms
of the scheme and the movement in Directors’ share options
during the financial year ended 30 April 2008 are set out on
page 34 of Directors’ Report and in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by the
Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The amounts paid to
each Director of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2008 are
set out in note 9 to the financial statement.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, 1 meeting of Remuneration
Committee was held to review the remuneration package of the
Board and the senior management. The following table shows the
attendance of individual Directors at the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee held during the year:
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FHEASRAKS 1-& 1 4:|
Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) BEER (FE) 11
Lui Tin Nang SN 1/1
Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 16 July 2007) RGEE (RZFEELFLAF NHEZE) 0/1
Cheung Siu Chung (appointed on 16 July 2007) RIKA (R=ZFELFELAFNHEZF) 1/1
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TEERBRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The GEM Listing Rules require every listed company to establish
an audit committee comprising at least three members who must
be non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof must be
Independent Non-executive Directors, at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company established an audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 4 July 2001 with reference to
“A Guide for the Formation of an Audit Committee” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee were revised on 1 July 2005 in terms substantially
same as the provisions set out in the CG Code. The revised terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

The major duties of the Audit Committee include:

. to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor;

o to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
that auditor;

o to review and monitor external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

. to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendation of any measures for improvements to be
taken;

o to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards;
and

(vi)  compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

. to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems and ensure that the management
has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

. to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response;

o to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and
monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

. to review the external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

o to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.

The Group’s quarterly results for the three months ended 31 July
2007, six months ended 31 October 2007, nine months ended 31
January 2008 and audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 April 2008 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, 4 meetings of Audit Committee
were held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the
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year:
Attendance/

Number of

Name of Audit Committee Members Meetings held
HE 817

ERZEERANRS 14 1 4=
Lui Tin Nang (appointed as the Chairman Kt (R=ZFEF+FLA+~H 4/4

on 16 July 2007) BEFRFE)

Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 16 July 2007) BREE (R -FELFLA+NNHEZT) 1/4
Cheung Siu Chung (appointed on 16 July 2007) KA (RZFELFELALTNNAEZF) 4/4
Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company EXRLZE @ BRI EARAATMERE -

Secretary. Draft and finalised minutes of the Audit Committee
meetings are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for their comments and records respectively, in both cases within
reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

Auditors Remuneration

An amount of HK$320,000 (2007: HK$220,000) was charged to the
Group’s for the year ended 30 April 2008 for the auditing services by
Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants (“Grant Thornton”), the
existing auditors who was appointed on 15 June 2005. There is no
non-audit service assignment provided by Grant Thornton during the
year.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system
of internal control includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, is designed to help the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control. The
Board, through the review of the Audit Committee and based on the
discussions with the external auditors, is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the Code Provisions on internal controls during
the year under review as set forth in the CG Code except that an
internal audit function has not been set up in the internal control
system of the Group.

Organisational Structure and Reporting System

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures,
lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established.
A comprehensive monthly management reporting is in place.
The Division/Department Heads of each core business division is
accountable for the conduct and performance of each business in
the division within the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves
and the Board together, and report directly to the Board.

Authority and Control

The relevant Executive Directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities with regard to key
corporate strategy and policy and contractual commitments.

Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting

A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in
place providing financial and operational performance indicators to
the senior management, and the relevant financial information for
reporting and disclosure purpose.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting (Cont’d)

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of individual core businesses and subject to review and
approval by the Executive Directors as part of the Group’s three-year
corporate planning cycle. Budgets are reforecast on a half yearly
basis and reviewed for differences to the budget and approval.
When setting budgets and forecasts, senior management identifies,
evaluates and reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact
of significant business risks.

The Executive Directors review monthly management reports on the
financial results and key operating statistics of each business and
hold monthly meetings with the senior management of business
operations to review these reports, business performance against
budgets, forecasts, significant business risk sensitivities and
strategies. In addition, each month the accounting manager of
the Group attend meetings with the senior management and the
Executive Directors to review monthly performance and to address
accounting and finance related matters.

Cash Management System and Capital Expenditures System

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for
its subsidiary operations. A treasury report is distributed weekly to
report on the Group’s cash and liquid investments, and movements
thereof.

The Executive Directors have established guidelines and procedures
for the approval and control of expenditures. Operating expenditures
are subject to overall budget control and are controlled within each
business with approval levels for such expenditures being set by
reference to each executive’s and officer’'s level of responsibility.
Capital expenditures are subject to overall control within the annual
budget review and approval process and, more specific control and
approval prior to commitment by the Executive Directors for material
expenditures within the approved budget, and also unbudgeted
expenditures. Quarterly reports are reviewed comparing actual
against budgeted and approved expenditures.

CODES AND POLICIES

Securities Dealing Code

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company has
confirmed that the Directors have fully complied with the required
standards of dealings regarding securities transaction by the
Directors as set out on GEM Listing Rules throughout the vyear
ended 30 April 2008.

Related Party Transactions Policy

The Company has formulated a policy on the review and approval
of the related party transactions. Related party transactions are
periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CODES AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

Code of Ethics

The Company adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the code. The Code of Ethics is
also intended to promote the wellbeing of the all employees, officers
and Directors in the workplace, and advocate high standards of
professional conduct and work performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the Company
to raise comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii)
updated and key information of the Group available on the website
of the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders and investors;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to provide clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or dispatching
circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its shareholders’
views and inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at
least 21 days’ notice is given. The Chairman as well as chairmen
of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and/or Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, Directors are available to answer
shareholders’ questions on the Group’s businesses at the meetings.
All shareholders have statutory rights to call for extraordinary
general meetings and put forward agenda items for consideration by
shareholders. If the poll is demanded, the poll will be conducted by
the share registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are
published on the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Directors present to the shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 April 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During
the year ended 30 April, 2008, its subsidiaries and associated
companies are active into two main operating divisions (i) corporate
services business, including professional translation services;
company secretarial services; information technology services;
business, accounting and corporate development advisory services;
and (ii) funds and wealth management services business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
Results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2008 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 40.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 107 to 108.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 30 and 33 respectively
to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 30 April 2008 amounted to approximately HK$33,595,000 (2007:
HK$32,233,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 44 to 45 and note 31 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Report
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) (resigned on 27 May 2008)
Wong Wai Tung (resigned on 27 May 2008)
(Chief Executive Officer)
Yeung Sau Han, Agnes (appointed as executive director
(Chief Executive Officer) on 8 June 2007 and as chief
executive officer on 23 June
2008)
Yu Sau Lai (appointed on 16 July 2007)

Non-executive director

Wong Sai Hung, Oscar (appointed on 23 June 2008)
(Chairman)

Independent non-executive directors

Lui Tin Nang

Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 16 July 2007 and
resigned on 23 June 2008)

Cheung Siu Chung (appointed on 16 July 2007)

Orr Joseph Wai Shing (appointed on 23 June 2008)

Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung (appointed on 23 June 2008)

In accordance with article 116 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Yeung Sau Han, Agnes and Ms. Yu Sau Lai shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 99 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Wong Sai Hung, Oscar, Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing and
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 11 to 15 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Lo Wah Wai has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 1 July
2003, which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
serving not less than six months’ notice in writing to the other.
The service contract has been terminated on 27 May 2008 by the
resignation notice served from Mr. Lo to the Company.

Mr. Wong Wai Tung has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 29
August 2005, which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party serving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other. The service contract has been terminated on 27 May 2008 by
the resignation notice served from Mr. Wong to the Company.

Ms. Yeung Sau Han, Agnes has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 8
June 2007, which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party serving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

Ms. Yu Sau Lai has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 16 July
2007, which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
serving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Lui Tin Nang has entered into a new appointment letter with
the Company for another one year commencing from 30 September
2007 to continue to act as the Independent Non-executive Director.

Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence has entered into an appointment letter
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing from
16 July 2007 to act as an Independent Non-executive Director. The
appointment letter has been terminated on 23 June 2008 by the
resignation notice served from Mr. Chan to the Company.

Mr. Cheung Siu Chung has entered into a new appointment letter
with the Company for another one year commercing from 16 July
2008 to continue to act as the Independent Non-executive Director.

Each of Mr. Wong Sai Hung, Oscar, Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing and
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing
from 23 June 2008 to act as an Independent Non-executive Director.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Cont’d)

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those set out in note 36 to the financial statements, none
of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above and in note 33 to the financial statements,
at no time during the year were the rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or chief executive of the Company or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 April 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and their respective associates in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) adopted by the Company,
or to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

Long Positions
(a) Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of director Capacity

EEfR i3

Lo Wah Wai Held by controlled corporation (note 1)
EER FERIEGRB SR (BiF1)

Beneficial owner (note 2)
E=RBEBE AN (Kit2)

Wong Wai Tung Beneficial owner

TER En#EA
Notes:
1. 206,560,000, 252,096,000 and 56,544,000 shares of the Company are owned by

Williamsburg Invest Limited (“WI”), Mangreat Assets Corp. (“MA”) and Homelink
Venture Corp. (“HV”) respectively. WI, MA and HV are companies incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and are wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Wah Wai.

2. Options to subscribe for a total of 140,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to Mr. Lo Wah Wai. The Company has made adjustment to the
outstanding share options in accordance with the bonus issue approved by the
shareholders at the Company on 29 August 2007 (the “Bonus Issue”).

Directors’ Report

EEERE

EEREScHD
RZZFZNFONA=+tH EZRREZEH
BARARAREEFMABZEE (EEREE
EPIESNEESZ R BEGH ([F 5 RBEKF
51 1) BXVER) 2 B fn RARRE B in h B B IR &
EHRAEROIEXVE LTSN BMAE AR
ANz EE AR (BRRERIERS
EEEGRDI 2 BRIGXIREFRRIEHA 2
BmHEAR) RACHENARBREEF M
EIRPIFB2MGEMEFEZELM  HREA
RARAZ LT AR EFTETESFIRHZITE
SAI(MRESTA D MAMEARB KB RM 2
Eam ORI

He
(a RELERGREBRGZEZ
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage of
shares and  the issued share
underlying shares capital
B% 15 & 48 BR B& {3 ERTRF
Hizire #HHasl
515,200,000 27.10%
140,000,000 7.37%
2,020,000 0.11%
Mt -
1. 206,560,000 - 252,096,000/ 56,544,0008% 4% 22 7] % 15

T3 % Bl B3 Williamsburg Invest Limited ([ WI ]) + Mangreat Assets
Corp. ([ MA ]) &xHomelink Venture Corp. ([ HV 1) # A < WI + MA
FHVR R BE A SEMA L YhMEEFREEL2ER
%o

2. JIE TE L ST AR B IR M LA SR BB AR A R & $£140,000,000/%
&1 - AARIERBARRABRRR-_TTLFENA=+TAI
Bt 2 ALAR BT (TALRREAT ) - WREITHE 2 BB IE
e A% -
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had, as at 30 April 2008, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 29 August
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.

Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended

ESpEscEa (|)

B EXPR#EN RZBENFHA=+H -
EESARAIBZTBRAERARAREME
MAEEE (E&EREH KB E G EXVER)
2By AR RESFTREREEAREES R
HE GG EXVEE7R8D MMM AR A T K
RizERIAR (BRESERERSZLHE
fplz BRGNS RAERA 2 2 30K
B) RALXHERARARIEREF BT R
FIRMGREFE 2 ELM - HIREZE TR
MAMEARB KRB A2 ESIRE -

R R 12

ARBR BT _FNAA T AARMERE
BT _FBREFS ) 22BN
REFhREREEBRHUERS -

KBE-FB/\FMA=+ALFE —T2

30 April 2008 under the 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows: “HEBRETEE T EREZSDFIBIEHD
™ :
Granted Exercised Cancelled Exercise price
Name or category of Outstanding at during the the during Lapsed the the during Outstanding at Exercisable  per share of
participant Date of grant 1 May 2007 year year during year year 30 April 2008 period the Company
R-ETLER RIEEN\FEMN
BA—H BA=+H ELFRGE
BRAREBAR BRHAMY RRITE RERTH RERTE RERKH RERES AERITE TTERRE BRITHER
HK$
BT
(a) Director
=
Lo Wah Wai 29/08/2002 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000*  29/08/2002 - 0.06125*
EER 28/08/2012
30/08/2006 100,000,000* — — - 100,000,000  30/08/2006 : 0.01000*
29/08/2016
(b) Others in
aggregate
Hfth @&t 29/08/2002 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000*  29/08/2002 - 0.06125*
28/08/2012
30/08/2006 100,000,000* — — - 100,000,000  30/08/2006 - 0.01000*
29/08/2016
Total
A&F 280,000,000 — — — 280,000,000

* The Company has made adjustment to the outstanding share options in accordance with the
bonus issue approved by the shareholders of the Company on 29 August 2007. The details
has been published on the Company’s announcement dated 29 August 2007.

Note:

The details of share options valuation are set out in note 33 to the financial statement.

Annual Report 2008

BB \FEH

C RANERBAANREN=FELFENASTABIEZA
BT HARATE 2 BB HEEIRART A
BE-ETLFENA-tAAZAH-

e

MR ML AR B R B B R RE83



B M Intelligence International Limited 3 2 EKE B H R 2 A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 April 2008, other than the interests and short positions of
the directors or chief executives of the Company disclosed above,
persons or companies who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances of general meetings of
the Company or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Directors’ Report

EEERE

FERE

RZZEENFHA=+H BREXHAEERR
AEFATBETRABZESERARIN RA
REED REERDFHEEEREES LR
R SEXVEB B2 8% 370 BRI X M A X A K BR 2 1
BRAR  HEEIEERMAEEECABERT
ARARALETERRZBEAG LRF2H#
M2 EAPRAEREES% A (RALQ AR
BEFLAEKDIE3B6HEFE 2 FR MR
BE)EEERZALTHARTMNT

Aggregate long
position in the

Approximate
percentage of

Type of shares and the issued share

Name of shareholder Capacity interests underlying shares capital

B 17 B 48 R B% 17 ERTERF

BRER 21 HImH HrzHeE #BvaESst

Ip Yu Chak Held by controlled corporation  Corporate 102,770,000 (Note 1) 5.41%

Bz BRXEHATREE YNEC] (K1aE1)

Beneficial owner Personal 140,000,000 (Note 2) 7.37%
E=mEA A & A (Kiz22)

Notes: Hiat

1. 102,770,000 shares are owned by B & M Associates Limited (“BM”). BM is a company 1. 102,770,0008% A% 15 73 BB & M Associates Limited ([ BM J)
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued share capital of BM is wholly- BE-BMIOREBRELZBESHMK I ZAA HE2HE
owned by Mr. Ip Yu Chak. BITRADBHELRBEE2EHE -

2. Options to subscribe for a total of 140,000,000 shares of the Company were granted to 2. B f AR R ERERE AR &4 $£140,000,0008%
Mr. Ip Yu Chak. The Company has made adjustment to the outstanding share options in MR e RAREIRBAMREST - HARBITHE 2 EREELD
accordance with the Bonus Issue. HE o

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executives of B EXFIHEEEIN RBEEZ_ZTZTN\FWTA

the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as at the
year ended 30 April 2008, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances of general meetings of
the Company or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO.

=tBREEE EERARFAEIBTHRAEL
NABAEAA T RAR B K BB R B
BARIEEZF LR E GO EXVELZ 25370 &
EXMARNBREZEBEIRE - HEE KM
BERMAEEERBRTARARAREERR
ZBRAE® E®RE ZAF A B 58 Bl 85 %
A E (BARRIRIEE 75 & & 15 533615% 17
BEZELMAREE)EAMER -
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Directors’ Report
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, there
are no contracts of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business that competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the services provided to the Group’s largest
and five largest customers accounted for 55% and 72% of the
Group’s revenue respectively. None of the Directors, their respective
associates, nor any shareholders of the Company who own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers during the year.

In view of the nature of the Group’s business, no major suppliers
were noted.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

During the year ended 30 April, 2008, as disclosed under section
“Directors’ interests in securities”, Mr. Lo Wah Wai individually and
collectively entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or
more of the voting power at the general meetings of the Company
and who are able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company or considered to be the management
shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company,
based on such confirmation, considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee on 4 July 2001 with written
terms of reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal controls
of the Group. The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Lui Tin
Nang (chairman), Mr. Cheung Siu Chung, Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing
and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed and discussed the financial reporting matters including the
annual results for the year ended 30 April 2008 with the management
and the external auditors.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

Except for the change of auditors of the Company from Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants to Grant Thornton,
Certified Public Accountants on 15 June 2005, there is no change in
auditors of the Company in any of the preceding 3 years.

The financial statements of the Company for the years ended 30
April 2006, 2007 and 2008 were audited by Grant Thornton. A
resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, as auditors of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sai Hung, Oscar
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report
R HTE

Q‘ GrantThornton
98

TO THE MEMBERS OF
B M INTELLIGENCE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
$B R PR R 43 )

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of B M
Intelligence International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to
106, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 30 April 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 April 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

9 July 2008

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

mElER

For the year ended 30 April 2008

BE-TT/N\EMA=+ALEE

2008 2007
—EEN\E —ZTTLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAB T
Revenue 5 88,760 64,952 |1} =
Cost of services provided (65,543) (50,492) ERMHEZREKAR
Gross profit 23,217 14,460 FEF
Other income 1,986 1,273 Hb s
Administrative and operating expenses (37,387) (20,900) fTHMELRAL
Operating loss (12,184) (5,167) #&EZE1E
Finance costs 7 (199) (105) Bri5&E A
Share of results of associates 9,143 4,412 [EEBMERRIES
Loss before income tax 8 (3,240) (860) BKFrEMRAEIESE
Income tax (expense)/credit 11 (217) 486 TR (BAY) e
Loss for the year (3,457) (B74) FFEEEHE
Attributable to: T3 FEAh -
Equity holders of the Company 12 (3,446) (365) AN ERAFHFA
Minority interests (11) 9 PERFER
Loss for the year (3,457) (874 FEEEHIE
Dividends 13 - - BB
Loss per share for loss attributable to ERXFEFEHFA
the equity holders of the Company FRAELEGE
during the year 14 ZHBEBE
— basic (2007: restated) (HK0.187) (HK0.024) —BEX(ZEStF:
centsi#f{ll cents/& Il BEY)
— diluted N/AFEHR N/AT i A — W
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HREERRE

As at 30 April 2008 R-ZZZENFMA=+H
2008 2007
—EEN\E _—_TTLHF
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
B & THT FATT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 15 5,279 5,168 W2 ﬁ%&ﬂ{%
Operating lease prepayments 16 3,661 3,743 EEHERMNR
Interests in associates 19 10,123 4,386 RBERFZ TE
Available-for-sale financial assets 20 1,177 455 AL EMIEEE
Rental deposits 2,486 1,066 Haeiks
22,726 14,818
Current assets mENEE
Trade receivables 21 2,884 5,600 EWE S RE
Deposits, prepayments and other Re - BARER
receivables 7,981 1,258 H 1t pE Uk BR 18
Financial assets at fair value through EBAFERERYEZ
profit or loss 22 3,951 — WHEE
Amounts due from associates 23 490 864 B B 2 N B 3R IE
Amount due from an investee company 24 1,005 — JEUR 2 & R FIFRIB
Amount due from a minority JE B B~ ) A 8
shareholder of a subsidiary 24 337 346 fi% B8 X 18
Cash and cash equivalents 25 34,619 28,427 BekReEEAR
51,267 36,495
Current liabilities mERE
Accrued charges and other payables 26 17,316 10,181 ErERMEMERNEKE
Amount due to an associate 23 - 28 FEA B & N B I8
Bank loan (secured) — due within AR ﬁETTE\ﬁA -
one year 27 143 109 Ep-t
Obligations under finance leases BEHRE —F R
— due within one year 28 — 120 Z| 5
Taxation payable 279 91 e R
17,738 10,529
Net current assets 33,529 25,966 REEERE
Total assets less current liabilities 56,255 40,784 BEHERARDAR
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

GREERER

As at 30 April 2008

2008 2007
—ETNE —"ZTTLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & THT FATT
Non-current liabilities FmIAR
Bank loan (secured) — due over EERHRITER —R—F1&
one year 27 3,435 3,588 EI| B
Obligations under finance leases BEMEAE —R—F&
— due over one year 28 - 200 Rt
3,435 3,788
Net assets 52,820 36,996 HWERE
EQUITY ga
Equity attributable to equity holders ELFIRFERFEA
of the Company EEER
Share capital 30 19,009 4,527 B& 72
Reserves 33,595 32,233 B
52,604 36,760
Minority interests 216 236 SHBREES
Total equity 52,820 36,996 HMELR
Yeung Sau Han, Agnes Yu Sau Lai
BB RBE
Director Director
EF EFE
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Balance Sheet

EESRR

As at 30 April 2008 RZZEZENFOA=+H
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FHE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
Non-current assets EREDEE
Investments in subsidiaries 17 200 200 REB AR Z’E
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments 101 103 TE R IE
Amounts due from subsidiaries 18 49,085 24,505 NG E ]
Cash and cash equivalents 25 124 7,327 ReLHEEEEER
49,310 31,935
Current liabilities nBAMR
Accrued charges 722 415 EitEH
Net current assets 48,588 31,520 mENEESRE
Net assets 48,788 31,720 SERE
EQUITY fH#a
Share capital 30 19,009 4,527 % 2
Reserves 31 29,779 27,193 G
Total equity 48,788 31,720 #ER
Yeung Sau Han, Agnes Yu Sau Lai
HEMN REE
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Consoliglated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBER

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE-_ZETEN\FUA=1+AHLFE
Minority
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests Total
2.
FAFRFBAABERS BR#ES at
Share
Share Share Translation Special option Other Accumulated
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total
R B
kx RARE BEEF BHEEG R R RitEiR: at
HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$000  HK$'000
FHET FHEL FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(note 30)
(%3 ££30)

At 1 May 2006 3,410 27,180 - (200) 162 - (12,730) 17,822 209 18,031 AA—AH
Currency translations — net EMBmE-A%
results recognised directly RERER
in equity - - 208 - - - - 208 - 208 CREFS
Loss for the year - - - - - - (365) (365) ) (374) KEFER
FEEBERA
Total recognised income and ZBWA
expense for the year - - 208 - - - (365) (157) ) (166) B
Capital contributed by minority
interests - - - - - - - - 22 22 SERFELE
N 5% B 5 R —
Increase in minority interests Lil=NEEEN
as a result of acquisition BRELEZVE
of addition interest in a RE
subsidiary by the Group - - - - - - (14) (14) 14 - 1
Shares issued at premium 1,117 16,464 - - - - - 17,581 - 17,581 BRERTRGD
Shares issue expenses - (455) - - - - - (455) - (455) M1 B TR X
Equity-settled share based AEREAZ
payment expenses - - - - 1,983 - - 1,983 - 1,983 BHEX
Exercise of share options - 316 - - (316) - - - - - TR
Share option lapsed during
the year — — — — 2 - 2 - - - FERLR 2 ERE
RZTTLHF
At 30 April 2007 4,527 43,505 208 (200) 1,827 - (13,107) 36,760 236 36,996 MA=+AH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FERRBBR

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUA=TRHLFE
Minority
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests Total
DH
FAFRFFAABERS BRESE ant
Share
Share Share Translation Special option Other Accumulated
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total
R B
kx RAAE BEEF BHEEG R Rt RitEiR: &t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$000  HK$'000
FHET FHEL FHET FHET FHEL FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(note 30)
(Fff 5£30)
R-ZEBLF
At 1 May 2007 4,527 43,505 208 (200) 1,827 - (13,107) 36,760 236 36,996 HA—H
Currency translations - - 336 - - - - 336 - 336 ErinE
3N
Share of net reserves HEZD
movement of an associate - - - — — 694 - 694 - 694 FE
Net results recognised directly BEERNEGHRAZE
in equity - - 336 — — 694 - 1,030 - 1,030 BRE
Loss for the year - - - - - - (3,446) (3,446) (11) (3,457) AEEER
AFEEEHER
Total recognised income and b3 ON
expense for the year - — 336 - — 694 (3,446) (2,416) (11) (2,427) KX
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - — — - - — 9) (9) HE—MHEBLAR
Shares issued at premium 900 17,910 - — - - - 18,810 - 18,810 R BETRG
Shares issue expenses - (550) - - - - — (550) — (550) BT
Share premium transferred to
share capital upon issue of BITHREERER
bonus shares 13,582 (18,582) — — — - - - - - K2 155 B
R-BENE
At 30 April 2008 19,009 47,283 544 (200) 1,827 694 (16,553) 52,604 216 52,820 MA=+H

* The aggregate amount of these balances of HK$33,595,000 (2007: HK$32,233,000) in surplus ~ * &% 574 # i1 & #£33,595,000/8 7T (= T 2+ 4 : 32,233,0008
is included as reserves in the consolidated balance sheet. TIZBBRNBEEREEEGBERZHEENRN -

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal kR EER _ZT—FAREESHHEE KK
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal MM BEARRGOEERARQ AL KEZSHE
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the ZAFIM THREITZARTROEE L ZH -
time of the Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

Other reserve represents the share of net reserves movement of an EffEEIEEG —MHE AR HEBEEZEFE -
associate.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 30 April 2008 (E_ZTN\FOA=THILFE
2008 2007
—EBNE ZETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B =% FTET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHZHERE
Loss before income tax (3,240) (860) BRETGRAIEE
Adjustments for: RRE:
Bad debts written off - 86 AR 8H
Impairment of receivables made 101 856 JEWBRIE R (B
Impairment of receivables written back (856) - B ENRIERE
Amortisation of operating lease prepayments 82 48 WEAETRM AR H
Depreciation 1,594 645 wE
Dividend income for equity investments (38) - RERE 2 R BWA
Equity-settled share based payment expenses — 1,983 NERY R ZROEY
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial AHEENBEEL
assets 1,278 - REEBE
Interest income (587) (365) ESVON
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERSEZ
equipment 69 13 BB
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 35 (1) - HEMWB ARz W
Gain on financial assets at fair value through BATERERIIEL
profit or loss (27) - MBEE W&
Share of results of associates (9,143) (4,412) iR NG
Interest on bank overdrafts 3 - RITBEXZHE
Interest on bank loan not wholly repayable BAREFRNEHEEZ
within five years 175 99 BITERZHME
Finance charge on obligations under finance MEMEREZ
leases 21 6 BEER
Operating loss before working capital EEESEPNIC
changes (10,569) (1,901) EEBFR
Decrease in trade receivables 3,471 1,492 EWE FERIERD
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other Be  BRREREAMER
receivables (8,777) (685) AR IE 42 00
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from [EMRE A RIFER D/
associates 374 (307) (34n)
Increase in amount due from an investee [EWZ I E AR KIE
company (1,005) = 20
Decrease/(Increase) in amount due from a FEU B R A D Bk R FE
minority shareholder of a subsidiary 9 (190) A,/ ()
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued charges and [Ezt B A Rk Kt T R I8
other payables 8,082 (80) #m,/ ()
Decrease in amount due to an associate (28) (338) J& 1 B ' 1 B FRIE R
Cash used in operations (8,443) (2,009) %* Pﬁ}fﬁfﬁi
Income taxes (paid)/refunded (29) 486 (BR)/CEEEZHRER
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (8,472) (1,523) KEEZHFMAREPH
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

N
GERERER
For the year ended 30 April 2008 (ZE_ZET N\FHA=THLEE
2008 2007
k- 1 J 162 e g3
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B =% FTET THET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REIBZHERE
Dividend received from an associate 4,100 1,433 B ARIRE
Capital injection by minority interests - 22 LEBRFEE
Dividend received from equity investments 38 - Bl kR AR E
Interest received 587 365 B U F B
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets (2,000) — AEHEBEELM
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BEERATERERNEZ
profit or loss (29,416) - MBEE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEREAFERERIEZ
fair value through profit or loss 25,492 - M EEMSHE
Increase in operating lease prepayments - (3,791) SR ETEN FIEE M
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,830) (739) BEDE BELERE
Proceeds from sale of a subsidiary, net of cash HE—HMBLRAMERE
disposed 35 71 - (BENBRERERS)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,958) (2,710) HRETHFRAREPHE
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEITBZHERE
Proceeds from shares issued 18,810 17,581 BIIRMETSRIE
Share issue expenses paid (550) (455) EXHBRHBETRY
Repayment of bank loan (119) (63) 1@5&%&171!5m
Interest on bank overdrafts (3) - TEXZHME
Interest on bank loan not wholly repayable @?‘ﬁﬁﬁq RE BB 2 R1T
within five years (175) (99) ERZHE
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (320) (48) rﬂéfﬁ EHREZER
Finance charge on obligations under finance BEREREY
leases (21) ) 8% EH
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING MEETEHA#Z
ACTIVITIES 17,622 16,920 BesH
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeRBSEERE
EQUIVALENTS 6,192 12,687 BhnsE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING ENZRER
OF THE YEAR 28,427 15,740 He®EEA
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FRZBER
THE YEAR 34,619 28,427 Re$EER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

B M Intelligence International Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revision
2001) of Cayman Islands on 20 April 2001. The address of
its registered office is PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands and its principal place of
business is Units 3306-12, 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, Nos. 6—
8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of corporate
services and funds and wealth management services.

The financial statements on pages 40 to 106 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2008 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 9 July 2008.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

21 In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied, for
the first time, the following new standards, amendment
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant and effective for the Group’s financial period
beginning on 1 May 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial

Statements — Capital

Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments :
Disclosures
HK(IFRIC) — Scope of HKFRS 2

Interpretation 8

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is required.

HE_ZZNFUNA=+tBHILtLFE

1.

—REH
BEERBEEAERATTRRAADRN
R -FMAZ+THREBEHASHEAR
AECEE-FEIMEFREHS
AMKIRXEMRAER QA o H M
EREETELEME 2D 5 RP.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands & & /& /& {1 /&
72 3E6-85% It 2 ,33183306-12F AR
ARODREBBER S BR AT ([H
RATDBIZER (TRIZEMR ) £

ARARD—HEREZERAR  HHTEQ
BAZEEXEBRIEBEECERBARES
R EEBRE -

H N FA0EH = F106E 2 R K Ty
BEBYERELL ([FEMBHREE
All-BiEaEEedmag((58e
SHERAE DBEMm A EBEREE Y
BREER FESHEARRE)ME
B-PBEBRNBEARZE SR E
PlzEBERERBEIMEIERESFLD
BMAI(TAIZER EmBal ) -
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BHRREVN _ZZENFLANAEES
SHETIE -

zﬁ’iﬁﬂﬁﬂfﬁﬂZEiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
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21 RAFE ARBAREMBLA (5
WIAEEDERERNATHER
SRR G RMZFR]ER - ERT
kaE MEBEA BT kit
IR AEEE —_TT+LFAA—H
B 26 2 FF R BA R B R AR o

EB G %R B mE 2
B (K&185]) 2H—EX

W&
EBEMBHREEL $RMITA:
FTIR 5=

78 (BRMBE BEWBEHRE
TREZEY) HERFE25E 2
— R EEsR #E
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 Rk P &

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUA=TRHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs (Cont’d) 2. BRINPIIREETIZEEMERS
#8) (&)
2.2 HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital Disclosures 22 HEGHHENEIR EBERT)
—EXWE
In accordance with the HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital BEFSSHEDNFE1H (KIEFT)
Disclosures, the Group now reports on its capital —EBABE AEERERSEE

2.3

2.4

management objectives, policies and procedures in each
annual financial report. The new disclosures that become
necessary due to this change in HKAS 1 are set out in
note 39.

HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures is
mandatory for reporting periods beginning on 1 January
2007 or later. The new standard replaces and amends
the disclosure requirements previously set out in HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosures
and has been adopted by the Group in its consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2008.
All disclosures relating to financial instruments including
all comparative information have been updated to reflect
the new requirements. In particular, the Group’s financial
statements now feature:

. a sensitivity analysis, to explain the Group’s market
risk exposure in regards to its financial instruments,
and

. a maturity analysis that shows the remaining

contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

each as at the balance sheet date. The first-time
application of HKFRS 7, however, has not resulted in any
prior-period adjustments of cash-flows, net income or
balance sheet line items.

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
year ended 30 April 2008.

Presentation of Financial
Statements’

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements —
Consequential amendments
arising from amendments to

HKFRS 32

2.3

2.4

MEHREPE2REEARNEERZR
BE MR - BAEE G £ H1

TE A BT 39 ©

FRMBREENES: —&mT
A:EE
BREMBHREENER — 2R T
B WER_FTTLF-A—RHE
s H R 2 e B 0 ) B o IR
A EA DMK RETBERETR
SR ERERREMIA 25K
BREMIIL 2 HERE  AEEE
REBE-ZTZNFOA=THLF
BZEREMBEHMRRN UL IR AT E
Bl-ERESRMIAZMERE (8
BRAELBRAERBEEH UK
BRETARE - LHIBRBAEE 2875
BEREMAUNTARR :

. BREDN  FBEUAHARE
ErkemIAZTHRA
B R

. HHA DN EABTYH
BEZHBANIHER -

NEEEOHEEHEERARLE A
il BRRBEBNERSEERE
TREYBEREMATHEETRE
BRAREERBBERBAZHE -

ERMGEGRRENZHTHERSRT
ZEBMBHEEN

BE_ZZN\FHUA=Z+TRHILF
B rAEBYEREFRAATOR
HERAER BB BREE

Bl

BB ER
FE15%
(B1&ET)

BB SRR

28235%
(B&7])

BB ER
BT

MBRERZ2)

tEE KA

e kBB
Bk —FBY
s E R 53
(BRI A) E
EZREIERT?
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE-_ZETEN\FUA=1+AHLFE
2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs (Cont’d) 2. BRI EEITIZEEMERS
#8) (&)
2.4 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but 24 ERMGERFRERZIHITREET

are not yet effective (Cont’d) ZEBMBEREER (E)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates — BAEER REZEARZE
Consequential amendments $285% B —BEYB
arising from amendments to ¥ &5 2 BI S35
HKFRS 32 (BRI AR ESE

2 FEEIER]?

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures — BAGER GBRAEZR —
Consequential amendments E3155 BEAMBRSE
arising from amendments to R E35% (&
HKFRS 32 RIAR)EEZE

3 EHE

HKAS 32 Financial Instrument : Presentation EHe:tER €I E: 27
— Amendments relating to 3257 —BARAL
puttable instruments and AEREEBM
obligations arising on liquidation’ EEXCEFEE

eI

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — BEEMBHRE WRONK—BE
Amendment relating to vesting £ BI| ZE25% & 16 1 K2 5 8
conditions and cancellations’ EH BT

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations — EEUBHRE EBEH—HE
Comprehensive revision on A BI| Z835% FA B A 1R
applying the acquisition method? ZHEEE]?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments' BERAMBHRE K&

4 BI| 28858
HK(IFRIC) — Service Concession Arrangements® BE (BREBHBE REETEZH
Interpretation 12 mEREER
8g)—
B E125%
HK(IFRIC) — Customer Loyalty Programmes* B (HBRYHE BFAHETEH
Interpretation 13 WmEREZ
8g)—
R E135R
HK(IFRIC) — HKAS 19 — The Limit on a B (BB BEgtEAE
Interpretation 14 Defined Benefit Assets, Minimum mEREZER 1955 — R EE
Funding Requirements and their 8g)— MEEREE -
Interaction® B FE1457 KEESHRE
K EHMBEBIE
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 1 RZTENF-—A—BRZ2ERABZF
IR A K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 2 RZTENF+A—BRZERABZF
IR A K
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 3 RZTENF-—A—BR2ERABZF
IR A K
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008 4 RZZENF+A—BRZERABZF
IR A K
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2008

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs (Cont’d)

2.4

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Among these new HKFRSs, HKAS 1 (revised) is expected
to be relevant to the Group’s financial statements. This
amendment affects the presentation of owner changes
in equity and introduces a statement of comprehensive
income. Preparers will have the option of presenting
items of income and expense and components of other
comprehensive income either in a single statement of
comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two separate
statements (a separate income statement followed
by a statement followed by a statement of other
comprehensive income). This amendment does not affect
the financial position or results of the Group but may
give rise to additional disclosures.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing
the impact of other new or amended HKFRSs but are
not yet in a position to state whether they would have
material financial impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are stated at fair
values. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 April each year.

M B R M

BE-TT/\FMAZ+ELFE
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2.4

CHmERRENZHITREESH
ZEBMERESERN (|)
ZEFEEMEREENP - FH
e EEIR (BE)EHE
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3.1
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B M Intelligence International Limited 8 2 EB& BB H R 2 7

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUA=TRHLFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FIEOHNEHE(#E)
(Cont’d)
3.3 Subsidiaries 33 MEALAFR

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from
consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are carried
at cost less any impairment loss. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable at the balance
sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit or
loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Group and are not
the Group’s financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
Profit or loss attributable to the minority interests
are presented separately in the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the Group’s results. Where
losses applicable to the minority exceeds the minority
interests in the subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further
losses applicable to the minority are allocated against
the minority interest to the extent that the minority has
a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses. Otherwise, the losses are
charged against the Group’s interests. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, such profits are allocated
to the minority interest only after the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.
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For the year ended 30 April 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHHEHEE ()
(Cont’d)
3.4 Associates 34 BHEAF

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of voting rights but which are neither subsidiaries
nor investments in joint ventures. In consolidated
financial statements, investment in associates is initially
recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using
the equity method. Under the equity method, the Group’s
interest in the associate is carried at cost and adjusted
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss. The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the associate for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs directly
attributable to the investment.

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investment. After the application of equity
method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to
recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in its associates. At each balance sheet date,
the Group determines whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between
the recoverable amount (see note 3.9) of the associate
and its carrying amount.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTEEHHFEHE ()
(Cont’d)
3.5 Foreign currency translation 35 HEHmHE

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the balance
sheet date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date. Income and expenses have been
converted into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rate
over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been dealt with separately in
the translation reserves in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the amounts
received and receivable for the sales of services, net of
rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

Corporate service income is recognised when the
services are provided and the transaction can be
measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

3.6

3.7

3.8

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Income arising from funds and wealth management
services is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and the amount can be reliably estimated and
it is probable that it will be received.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a
time-proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Buildings held under capital leasing agreements are
depreciated over their expected useful lives or over the
term of lease, if shorter.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings over 25 years or the terms
of the leases, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold over the terms of the leases

improvements

Furniture and equipment  20%-25%

Computer equipment 25%

Motor vehicle 25%
The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the income statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

3.8

3.9

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment, operating lease
prepayments, investments in subsidiaries and associates
are subject to impairment testing.

All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level. Impairment loss is charged pro rata to the asset in
the cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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For the year ended 30 April 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

3.10 Leases
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exception:

— land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease (see
note 3.8). For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the right to use
the assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset, or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets (the “initial value”) are
included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligation under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under
finance lease agreements corresponds to those
applied to comparable acquired assets. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by
lease payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHHEHEE ()
(Cont’d)
3.10 Leases (Cont’d) 3.10 #HE (&)

(i)  Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the income statement on
a straight line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to the income
statement in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease prepayments are up-front payments to
acquire the leasehold land. The payments are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates are set
out below.

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale financial assets. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. At each balance
sheet date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
3.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate
and transaction cost.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the income statement.

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are either designated
to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in
any of the other categories of financial assets. For
available-for-sale investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.
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If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the reversal
occurs.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent
periods.

3.12 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in the income statement. Current tax is charged or
credited to equity if items to which it relates are charged
or credited to equity.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

3.12

3.13

3.14

Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affect neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary difference arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited directly to
equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums on the issue of
share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the
issuing of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

3.15 Retirement benefits costs and short term employee
benefits

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Annual Report 2008

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested
on 1 May 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled
share-based compensation plans for remuneration
of its employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 Rk P &

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZT/N\FMNA=T+THILFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHHEHEE ()
(Cont’d)
3.15 Retirement benefits costs and short term employee

3.15 BHEFIRFEREMERRER ()

benefits (Cont’d)

(iv)  Share-based employee compensation (Cont’d)
All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in share option
reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options expected
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of share options expected to vest
differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if
fewer share options ultimately are exercised than
originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

3.16 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank loan,
obligations under finance leases, accrued charges and
other payables and amount due to an associate.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in the income statement.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZTTEN\FUA=THLFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHHEHEE ()
(Cont’d)

3.16 Financial liabilities (Cont’d) 3.16 MEAR (&)

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less
the capital element of lease repayments (see note 3.10
above).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised costs; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Accrued charges and other payables and amount due to
an associate

Accrued charges and other payables and amount due
to an associate are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segments as the secondary reporting
format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated costs
represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist
primarily of operating lease prepayments, property, plant
and equipment, receivables and operating cash, and
mainly exclude corporate assets, interests in associates,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude corporate
liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to operating
lease prepayments and property, plant and equipment.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue
are based on the country in which the customer is
located and total assets and capital expenditure are
where the assets are located.
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B M Intelligence International Limited 2 EKE B E R 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

3.18 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

directly, or indirectly through one or
intermediaries, the party:

more

— controls, is controlled, or is under common
control with, the Group;

- has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group;

— has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

S
3.

4,

B R M

“EZN\FONA=TRHILFE
FESHBRREE (W)
3.18 MEAL

UMTALTEERAEE 2 BREA

+

(i)

(ii)
(il
(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

ZATEEMIEEZ BB
—fHEMLPNE

— BEHARER HXAK
B AT S - SRR E
ZARES

— BAEAEEZEZmN
ERNEAREBREE
ERZEEN:

— BEASEZHARE
il 4

ZALTRBERTF

[:]

AL BRI ERE

ZATRAEEREGRE
ZEEERENE :

Ra]

ZALTBOFVVERMRRZ
FHALZERRE

(V)R (V)IRFT LT A £ B
ok ] 35 10 4% 1) X Ak R ¥ ) 5%
AL HEEXFEEBEZ
ATBRERZEZE HE
EXEBEHEEZALZE
REEE 3

ZALTTIAREE R EAEE
EREZERAHEREMR
ZEEBRAR NG E

MEFiHERAE
HERABSRFETG LBER

BELEMARASELE

BREEBNBR

THERREZEHARSE M-

Annual Report 2008 —=ZE/\F £



B M Intelligence International Limited 3 2 EB& E K H5 R 2 7

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008

4.

Annual Report 2008

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the impairment of trade
receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and current market conditions.
Management reassesses the impairment of trade receivables at
the balance sheet date.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for available-for-sale financial assets at each
reporting date. They are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and determines a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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REVENUE AND TURNOVER 5 KBREX#H
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net Wz (R AEB 2 £ EB)IEREHF
amounts received and receivable from services provided by the A RSN EBE P IR AR 75 2 B U K FE W BR
Group to outside customers during the year, and is analysed )R8 o mT
as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE _—_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FE T
Corporate services 19,492 17,162 ¥R
Funds and wealth management services 69,268 47,790 HE LKW EEERE
88,760 64,952
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SHEHEH

Primary reporting format — business segments
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised

into two operating divisions — (i) corporate services which
include business, accounting and corporate development
advisory services, company secretarial services, translation

services, information technology services; and (i) funds and
wealth management services. These divisions are the basis on
which the Group reports its primary segment information.
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B M Intelligence International Limited 3 SZEE& B SR 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

SHMER &)

BE_ZT)\FHA=THLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.
Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d)
Segment information about these businesses is presented

FRBEREX —RBESB )
BRHEXB 2O MERZIT -

below.
Funds and wealth
Corporate services management services Consolidated
LERE BEORMETERE i#E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEBN\F _—TTLHE ZBEN\F _—TTLF ZBENE _—TT+F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHAT FTHRT FHBL FTET FHEL
Revenue 19,492 17,162 69,268 47,790 88,760 64,952 g
Segment results (7,040) (2,162) 1,402 1,433 (5,638) (729) D EEE
Interest income 587 365 A EBUA
Gain on financial assets BREREAT
at fair value through B8R 28 %
profit or loss 27 - BE W&
Unallocated corporate APBEEE
expenses (7,160) (4,803) 53
Operating loss (12,184) (5,167) KEEERE
Finance costs (199) (105) BIBEH
Share of results of JE {5 B A8 A
associates 9,143 4,412 E
BRETIS BRI
Loss before income tax (3,240) (860) g
Income tax (expense)/ FIEH(EX)/
credit (217) 486 BNl
Loss for the year (3,457) (374) AKEFEEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUNA=1+AHLFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. SWBHEH (W)
Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d) FEREEX E¥¥o8(#E)

Funds and wealth

Corporate services management services Consolidated
LERY BEERMEEERE we
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

—EBENE —TTtLF ZBBNE —TT+HF ZBBNE =—TITLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET FTET TAT FTET THT

ASSETS BE
Segment assets 41,994 29,598 15,206 9,074 57,200 38,672 DEEE
Interests in REEERE 2
associates 10,123 4,386 R
Unallocated corporate Aot
assets 6,670 8,255 BE
Consolidated total REEE
assets 73,993 51,313 ik
LIABILITIES BfR
Segment liabilities 2,517 1,969 14,077 7,825 16,594 9,794 DEEE
Unallocated corporate AOBEEE
liabilities 4,579 4,523 BE
Consolidated total HEAE
liabilities 21,173 14,317 B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUNA=1+AHLFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. SWBHEH (W)
Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d) FEREEX E¥¥o8 ()

Funds and wealth

Corporate services management services Consolidated
LRRY BEERMEERRE #e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

ZEBTNE —TTtH ZBENFE —ITTtF ZBENE —TITLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET THT TET TET FTET TET

OTHER INFORMATION Htt & ¥

Capital expenditure 819 8,155 1,011 460 1,830 8,615 BARRHX

Depreciation and MEREH
amortisation 1,087 421 589 272 1,676 693

Bad debts written off ERME R
and impairment of (BE) /B
receivables (written R AR I
back)/made, net (677) 864 (78) 78 (755) 942 HE(FRE)

Loss on disposal of HEME -
property, plant and S
equipment 7 13 62 - 69 13 pd g
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008  EEENFUA=THLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. SEWEFE (B)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments REREEX HEST
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the AEBZEBURBEERPEKE (2
Mainland China, including Macau (the “PRC”). The following HBRP)(RE]) - TRAAERIRME
table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by THE (FEREFPHERET)E D ZEE
geographical market, principally determined by the location of O
customers:

Revenue by
geographical market

RHETRISZHE

2008 2007

—ETNFE —"FTTLHF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET TET
Hong Kong 84,342 62,835 HE
The PRC 4,418 2,117 F

88,760 64,952

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of total I TAREAEMEMRONZ AEERAEEN
assets, and capital expenditure, analysed by the geographical &R D :
area in which the assets are located:

Total assets Capital expenditure
HWEE BFE¥H
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E _—TTLF ZBENF _—_TTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
’Figi'. FB T TEx T
Hong Kong 64,260 42,957 1,340 2,940 B8
The PRC 9,733 8,356 490 5,675 F
73,993 51,313 1,830 8,615
7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. HMEBERA
2008 2007
—EENE _—_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TET 7T
Finance charge on obligations under finance leases 21 6 FAMEREZHREAEA
Interest on bank overdrafts 3 - RIOIBEIZHE
Interest on bank loan not wholly repayable BERAFRNBHEEL
within five years 175 99 RITE R ZF B
199 105
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For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZTTEN\FUA=THLFE
8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRFTERNEGHIR
2008 2007
—EENE "—"TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET T T
Loss before income tax has been arrived B P15 T AT ES 18
at after charging: kR R IE
Auditors’ remuneration 421 294 X EETEN &
Amortisation of operating lease prepayments 82 48 ETHETANMRIEEHE
Bad debts written off - 86  ImERMIGH
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: ME WELIETE:
Owned assets 1,594 638 EBEEE
Assets held under finance leases - 7 MEMHERBEZEE
Exchange difference, net 254 33 EHETCFE)
Impairment of receivables (hote 21) 101 856  FEUARIER(E (Mf7F21)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial AHEEMBERE
assets 1,278 - VERIENSEi!
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWE  BELEKHE
equipment 69 13 2 BB
Operating lease rentals in respect of office PAEMHEZKEHERS
premises 3,932 2,437
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EERAAS (REEZEHE)
emoluments) (note 70) 21,322 15,684 (§1:10)
And after crediting: WEFA:
Dividend income from equity investments 38 — RBEEREEZEREKA
Impairment of receivables written back B m W ARIERE
(note 21) 856 — (K1 5221)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) 1 — HEMBARZWE (4:#35)
Gain on financial assets at fair value ERBEEAFENERZ
through profit or loss 27 — BB EEZ KR
Interest income 587 365 A BUWA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZZN\FNA=Z1+HILEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 9. EERERETEEZCHS

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Contribution  Equity-settled

to defined  share based
Salaries and contribution payment
Fees allowances plans expenses Total
EEARME DRFBHELL
ne FRRRH ZHR BRBERZARZ =113
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT FHET FTHET FHET
Year ended 30 April 2008 BE_ZI)NE
MA=+HLEE
Executive directors RiTES
Mr. Lo Wah Wai - 780 12 - 792 EEFE4LE
Mr. Wong Wai Tung - 558 12 - 570 IRRLAE
Ms. Yeung Sau Han BAEBRLT
(appointed on 8 June (RZEZLHF
2007) - 607 8 - 615 NANBEZE)
Ms. Yu Sau Lai REEXL
(appointed on 16 July (RZETLHF
2007) - 183 8 - 191 tATRBEEE)
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang 100 - - - 100 REERAE
Mr. So Kwok Wai HEELE
(resigned on 16 July (BRZZZLF
2007) - - - - - T ATAAET)
Mr. Lee Kwong Tong FhERE
(resigned on 16 July (BRZZZLE
2007) - - - - - T ATAART)
Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence BREELE
(appointed on 16 July (R=ZETLF
2007) 9% - - - % tATRAEEE)
Mr. Cheung Siu Chung R RAE
(appointed on 16 July (RZETLHF
2007) 100 - - - 100 tAtTRBEZA)
294 2,128 40 - 2,462
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUA=TRHLFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 9. ESRERTHEEBZMS (&)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Contribution ~ Equity-settled
to defined share based

Salaries and contribution payment
Fees allowances plans expenses Total
TERETGTE URALEEL
e e RO ZHH BRONHR2AZ CH)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT THT T TET THT
Year ended 30 April 2007 BE_ZZTEE
MA=+HLEEE
Executive directors RITES
Mr. Lo Wah Wai - 468 12 914 1,394 BERHLEE
Mr. Wong Wai Tung - 384 12 14 H0  TEREE
Independent non-executive BUERTES
directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang 40 - - - 40 BREEE
Mr. So Kwok Wai 40 - - - 40  EHEELE
Mr. Lee Kwong Tong 40 - - - 40 FThELE
Mr. Liu Ming Ming ZIRPBEE
(resigned on (BER-Z2TLF
1 March 2007) 5 = — — 5 ZA—BE{E)
125 852 24 928 1,929
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMEBESENEIRERETMNME
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2007: Nil). 2R (ZETLF E)o
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors AREBUTERESINIMANE A
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as MAREBE A IMAKRE B2 EE)
compensation for loss of office. B G -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008  EEENFUA=THLEFE
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 9. EERERETHEBEZHNS (B)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
Employees’ emoluments EEH&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the RAEBRAEERHTALH HEF=4%
Group, three (2007: two) were directors of the Company TEEEF WMRB)AARRESEH
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the MeFER EX -EBpmAB(ZETLF
remaining two (2007: three) individuals were as follows: ZHIAT BT
2008 2007
“BEENE _—_ZTT+HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THT TAE T
Salaries and other benefits 1,003 1,430 H&e&MEMER
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 24 36 RKAE AT B
Equity-settled share based DA P& 7N 45 & 37 LA
payment - 43 uENEN
1,027 1,509

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals
fell within the following bands:

BEFHEEIMEMERSEMT -

Number of individuals

N
2008 2007
—TENF _—TTLF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 3 T8 7T — 1,000,000 7T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUA=TRHLFE
10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 10. EERIBAX (BIEEE[E)
EMOLUMENTS)
2008 2007
“EBENE ~—TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHT FAT
Wages and salaries 20,048 12,753 T EK#F=
Share options granted to directors RTYTEZkEEZ
and employees (note 33) - 1,983 8 A% % (47:#33)
Pension costs — defined RNESKA —
contribution plans 858 649 FREHRET S
Other staff benefits 416 299 HMETHEF
21,322 15,684
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 1. F@WAX(ER)
2008 2007
—BEN\E —ZTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T FAT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEAEFEM
Current tax — tax for the year 218 — BHAT 18 — RNFEE R IE
Over provision in respect of prior years (1) (486) AFZBEBRE
Total income tax expense/(credit) 217 (486) F3RiFIY (&) EEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008

(E_ZTN\FOA=THILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Cont'd) 11. Fﬂ%#ﬁﬁﬁi‘i/ (E& ) ()
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% BEEFNESHBEEEIZRT R175%5 KN F
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. No taxation on EAAEERB R FIFHR - BB NI B
overseas profits has been provided in the financial statements as N B AR F E A A A A R R B s R
the overseas subsidiaries did not generate any assessable profits WM BERMERLEREGINEN 2 RIBER
for the year. Rt -
No provision for profits tax had been made in the financial MRAKREERZ A ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%lﬁgﬁ
statements for the year ended 30 April 2007 as companies B(MEHEHEFALAES G EERE
comprising the Group either had tax losses brought forward which A2 FERBR A ) 3 4*5‘1 B B AT f] pE R
were available to set off against the assessable profit arising in M S8 ZE—_TELFMNA=+
the respective jurisdictions for the year or did not generate any AItFE 2 MB®EINEEFEHED
assessable profits. B o
Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and accounting loss RERBERFEZHERY (Ee) R
at applicable tax rates : BB CHERNT
2008 2007
—eENE —TT oA
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss before income tax (3,240) (860) MFBRANGHE
Tax at Hong Kong profits BEBMNEHBE17.5%
tax rate of 17.5% (567) (151) SHEZHIA
Effect of different tax rates of ReBEEZHBARZ
subsidiaries operating in the PRC (66) 44 TAMEYE
Tax effect of expenses not deductible T BENRZEAZ
for tax purpose 2,342 740 Ry e
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1,734) (845) HBARBMAZBBEE
Tax effect of prior year unrecognised BEORTFABRAVEEBRE
tax losses utilised (150) (135) ZHBRE
Tax effect of current year tax losses AFEERBRABIABRZ
not recognised 347 303 Bisem
Tax effect of temporary difference AERERMEEZEL
not recognised 46 44 HEze
Over provision in prior years (1) (486) BEFEBHEEE
Income tax expense/(credit) 217 (486) FErEWEAX (E®)

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 29. FRELERIE 2 S SN M 529 o
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12.

13.

14.

B M Intelligence International Limited 3 SZ2E& EKR SR 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 12.

COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$3,446,000 (2007: HK$365,000), a loss of
HK$1,192,000 (2007: HK$2,743,000) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS 13.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year (2007: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
following data:

M B R M

E-TENAENASTALSE

FLAFIRFEF/FBAEMGER

RARABRABTEARGELEAEE
3,446,000/ 7T (— T T + 4F : 365,000
JC) 0 A 81,192,0008 L (— T T +
F 12,743,000 7T ) 2 BB E T AR R A
ZHIEHRE -

Y]
EETRBEAATEZRE (-2
) .

114
SIREARS BRI T AR E -

2008 2007
ZE2ENE T LHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET FHT
Loss attributable to the equity holders ARBBREAFAEA
of the Company (3,446) (365) JEfL G 1B

Number of shares

Kin# A
2008 2007
—EEN\E —"TTLHF
’000 ’000
T T
(Restated)
(Fg&E75))
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BUAESREREEZ
for the purpose of basic loss per share 1,847,519 1,530,992 T AR 0 RE S 1 8

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 April 2008 and
2007 are not presented because the impact of the exercise of
the share options was anti-dilutive.

The comparative figures of loss per share for the year ended
30 April 2007 had been re-calculated to reflect a bonus issue
occurred during the current year, details of which are set out
in note 30 to the financial statement.

HRTHEEREENRESFE Wt
WEEINHE-_ZZNFR_ZEFTLF
MA=+tHIEFEEREEBE -

HE ST +FNA=1+RILFEZS
REELRHFCEHTE  URBAK
FRBEEZARET EEABIHNY
MK M FE30 ©

Annual Report 2008 —=ZE/\F £



B M Intelligence International Limited ¥ 2 EB& E K H R 2 7

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE-_ZZ)N\FENA=1TBILFE
15. PE BERERH

The Group FEME
Furniture
Leasehold and  Computer Motor
Buildings  improvements  equipment  equipment vehicle Total
#¥ HEMREE KERRE BHEBRH RE =1
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET AT AT TET TET
At 1 May 2006 R-BEAE
hA—H
Cost - 313 1,152 1,461 - 2,926 [N
Accumulated depreciation - (213) (715) (1,005) - (1,933) ZR:ififE
Net book amount - 100 437 456 - 993  HRMEFE
Year ended 30 April 2007 HE_TETLHE
mA=+H
EEFE
Opening net book amount - 100 437 456 - 993  HWIEREFE
Exchange differences - - 8 1 - 9 EEER
Additions 1,828 567 561 568 1,300 4,824 NE
Disposals - - 7 (6) - (13 W&
Reclassification - - (95) 95 - -  B¥OHE
Depreciation (43) (148) (169) (258) (27) (645) E
Closing net book amount 1,785 519 735 856 1,273 5,168 HAREZEE
At 30 April 2007 RZZEZ+F
MmA=+H
Cost 1,828 881 1,499 2,142 1,300 7,650 [N
Accumulated depreciation (43) (362) (764) (1,286) (27) (2,482) ZififE
Net book amount 1,785 519 735 856 1,273 5,168 REEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008  EEENFUA=THLEFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15. Y% BERSE (&)
The Group (Cont’d) XEE |)
Furniture
Leasehold and  Computer Motor
Buildings  improvements  equipment  equipment vehicle Total
#¥ HEMREE KERRR BHEBRH RE &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET AT AT TET TET
Year ended 30 April 2008 BE_ZTN\F
MA=THLEFE
Opening net book amount 1,785 519 735 856 1,273 5168 HIKREFE
Exchange differences - - 4 19 - 28 EREE
Additions — 802 204 554 270 1,830 NE
Disposals - - (46) (23) - (69 HE
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWE DA
fote 35 - ® ) ) - ) (i)
Depreciation (79) (541) (241) (352) (387) (1,594 &
Closing net book amount 1,712 772 636 1,003 1,156 5279 HREEFE
Cost 1,828 1,575 1,379 2,422 1,570 8,774 B AR
Accumulated depreciation (116) (803) (743) (1,419) (414) (3,495 RifirE
Net book amount 1,712 772 636 1,003 1,156 5279 REBE
Bank loan is secured by the buildings with the carrying value R-ZZENFWA=Z+H ELITERD
of HK$1,712,000 as at 30 April 2008 (2007: HK$1,785,000 ) (note IABREI{E1,712,0008 7T Z B FEE TR (=
27). The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC, which is T T+ F 11,785,000/ 7T ) (M 5527) - K
held under a medium-term lease. SEH EBEFURPE  DREFHEE
/A -
The net book value of property, plant and equipment included ME BERSEZEEFERERZ
the net carrying amount of HK$328,000 in respect of assets ST +HFNMA=Z+HRERERENS
held under finance leases as at 30 April 2007. There are no BEEZHRMFMEI28,0008 L A2
assets held under finance leases as at 30 April 2008. ZNFOA=Z+H BEREREHE
BETMEE-

Annual Report 2008 —=ZE/\F £



B M Intelligence International Limited ¥ 2 EB& E K H R 2 7
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B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008

16.

17.

18.

(E_ZTN\FOA=THILFE

OPERATING LEASE PREPAYMENTS 16. BEHERAMCRE
2008 2007
—EENE _—_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFHT T
Opening net carrying amount 3,743 — BB RE
Additions - 3,791 NE
Annual charges of prepaid lease payment (82) (48) BNASzFEIH
Closing net carrying amount 3,661 3,743 HAKERM FE
The Group’s operating lease prepayments represent up-front AEB KEHERNFIBEEREES
payments to acquire an interest in the usage of land situated AEAMRPEZ T (AR EBHEER
in the PRC, which is held under a medium-term lease. NIFB)ZEEZHRE -
Bank loan is secured by the above land (note 27). RITE R TIA Lat + 3 /53K 38 (M 5
27) °
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RBLARZHERE

2008 and 2007

ZEEN\ER
- 44 42
HK$°000
T8I

Unlisted shares, at cost

200 FELTMRG  BEKAE

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 April
2008 are set out in note 37.

ARRAR-_ZEENFHA=1THZEZZ
BB R B RF IS B MY RERT -

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 18. EKMEARRIEA
2008 2007
—ET)N\EF e
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET TB T
Amounts due from subsidiaries 60,265 35,685 FEIH B AT R IE
Less: Provision for impairment (11,180) (11,180) & : JR1E B &
49,085 24,505

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

EUHBARZRERSERM 22 R
RIRBRIEE -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

B M Intelligence International Limited 3 SZ2E& EKR SR 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

M B R M

2 - ZEF

19. REBEELFIZHER

NEOR=+HIFE

2008 2007
—BEN\E T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
Investments in associates at cost REZERNF Z2®E
Unlisted shares 502 502 (R AARR) IE ET D
Share of post-acquisition results of associates, JE (B 2 N B UK BE 18 A
net of dividend 8,927 3,384 (BB E)
Share of net reserve movement JFE (LB 2 R R
of associate 694 — HE)FEE
10,123 4,386

As at 30 April 2008, the Group had interests in the following

associates:

RZZEZENFOA=Z+H XEERT
FIB & NRI R

Name of company

Country of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Particulars of
issued shares held

Attributable equity
interest to the Group

Principal activity

DR EMEIEXR FRiSERITRI THEEEGERFEE FEEB
S ERERER S
Directly Indirectly
HiZ il §
BMI Appraisals Hong Kong, limited 1,100,000 ordinary — 45% Valuation business
Limited liability company shares of HK$1
each
AR AR & AREMERLF 1,100,000 & A HE BREE
NG| E1ETTZ EBR
Fu Teng Limited British Virgin Islands, 500 ordinary shares 45% - Investment holding
limited liability of US$1 each
company
EEERHS 5000% & AL E (E13 REER
BREMERF TT L E B
BMI Surveyors Hong Kong, limited 90 ordinary shares — 40% Property agency
Limited liability company of HK$1 each
HERESLBI ST B AREMERF ORBREME1SET mER R
2 E R
BMI Overseas British Virgin Islands, 250 ordinary shares 25% - Provision for

Investment Limited

limited liability

company
HEELES -

BREMLERLF

of US$1 each

250/% iR &
1E T2 E@k

management
services

REEERS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008 (ZE_ZET N\FHA=THLEE
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 19. RBEBEAFIZES (H)
The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates BRAAEBRBERNTZHKERBE (57
extracted from their unaudited management accounts is set FERSEZAKEREIREREBR)S M
out below: T
2008 2007
—EENFE —_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TA T
Total assets 30,644 14,669 H@E&EE
Total liabilities (7,644) (4,520) #aE
Net assets 23,000 10,149 &EEFE
Group’s share of net assets AEBEEEHERREE
of associates 10,123 4,386 FE
Revenue 36,984 22,748 Wz
Profit for the year 20,237 9,350 F g Al
Group’s share of results of REEBFRELEZE QT
associates for the year 9,143 4,412 E
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of profit/ AEBERELBAEEMLSE THE QA
(losses) of certain associates. The amounts of unrecognised 2 i F / (E18) E AEEFZRKER
share of those associates, extracted from the relevant FEEZEHREATSE (EHaBE N
unaudited management accounts of associates, both for the Al 2 ABR R %*Z ERERB)EINMAT :

year and cumulatively, are as follows:

2008 2007
“EEN\NFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET T T
Unrecognised share of profit/(losses) of FARERE(LEE QA
associates for the year 41 (80) i Al (B8 )
Accumulated unrecognised share of R ARBERELEE QT
losses of associates (136) (177) B8
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For the year ended 30 April 2008

20.

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

M B R M

E-TENAENASTALSE
20. AHHEHBRE

2008 2007
—EENFE _—ZTTtHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET T T
Unlisted investment, at cost EEMIRE
2,732 732 (B AANER)
Less: Impairment loss (1,555) 77 R REEE
1,177 455
At 30 April 2008, the Group had interests in unlisted RZEZNFNA=Z+H  AEBERKIFE
companies, Union Services and Registrars Inc. (“Union ™ A &Union Services and Registrars
Registrars”) and Gold Regent Corporation Limited (“Gold Inc. ([ Union Registrars |) & & X 17 &

Regent”). Union Registrars provides share registration services
for listed companies in Hong Kong and Gold Regent is an
investment holding company.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, these investments
do not have quoted market prices in an active market and
the fair value cannot be measured reliably. Therefore, these
investments have been measured at cost less any provision for
impairment losses.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, a provision for
impairment of HK$1,278,000 (2007: Nil) made for the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets has been recognised to the
income statement as the directors of the Company considered
that the investment costs cannot be fully recovered. The
carrying amount is determined based on the discounted
present value of the investment prepared by the directors of
the Company.

R~ A& KT B # % ° Union
Registrars 8 & 8 Em AR ER M ER
R7S - MekiT —HIREZERKR QA -

ARAREERR ZERENIE R
ZMIZRAETIHERE HQXFENRE
EREWEE -FAL RERECEK
AR ERBEBREETE -

BE_ZZNFOA=THILFE ®H
RARAEERRRERANEELZHK
B W AREAHEENBEETIRE
Z B E#81,278,0008 T (— T T4 ¢
T)ERWaEXRER - REEDERAR
AEEMRECRETEREER -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 2. BERESIEE
2008 2007
“EBEENE — T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FAIT
Trade receivables from third parties 2,185 6,456 EWE=FEFHKRE
Trade receivables from a related company JEWRBIERRIE HRIE
(note 36) 800 - (%1 #£36)
Less: Impairment of receivables (101) (856) R : fE Y BRIERE
Trade receivables — net 2,884 5,600 [EWE FIKRIE — ¥
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B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 21.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables, as at 30 April 2008,
based on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as

E-TENAENASTALSE

BERSERE ()
RZZZNFWNA=1TH EKEZR
HREEAMRINRBER ZREDMN

follows : /RN
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
0-60 days 2,474 4,883 0-60k
61-90 days 173 355 61-90°%
Over 90 days 237 362 90KIA L
2,884 5,600

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to its
customers.

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered as
reasonable approximation of their fair value. Impairment
of trade receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtors and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is impaired. All of the Group’s trade
receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment.
The impaired trade receivables are mostly due from customers
of the Group that encounter financial difficulties and full
provision for impairment was made.

The movements in allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

AEBEHRTEREP 2 FHEEHRE0X -

EUEZEREZREERRSERTFE
ZABENE EARENRBETAEE
1 oK B8 50 4% B AR TR 2 IR AT IR @ 2=
MRRE AEREBKESREALR
BME- EBHEAAHERTBREE - LR
AWK BRER SRR BERE
SEBHRABEZTR -AEEMEE
WE ZRACETRETREM - BE
ZERWEZGHRBETERAEE BRI MG
R zEFPZRF YEFHEZHREE
Bt e

EWESRBRBEZBEEEHNT

2008 2007

—EBN\E _—_TTLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET BT
At beginning of the year 856 698  F 9]

Provision made 101 856 O iMIRREE

Written off = (698) iy
Written back (856) — E@
At end of the year 101 856  FiX
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21.

22,

23.

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
In addition,

past due as at the reporting date. Ageing analysis of trade
receivables not impaired is as follows :

some of the unimpaired trade receivables are I b

B M Intelligence International Limited 3 SZ2E& EKR SR 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 Rk P &

(E_ZTN\FOA=THILFE

21, BERSERE (&)

REHEM BOAUBREZRE
WE SR\ T B RN - 3 &R (EZE
WEZRBEZREDTWT

2008 2007
—BEN\NE _—_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FABT
Neither past due nor impaired 1,616 571  WIEBHEAKRMNINERE
1-60 days past due 944 4,312 #mHI1E60K
61-90 days past due 151 355 @ HA61 =90k
Over 90 days past due but i1 B #8 3890K
less than one year 173 362 BRBBE1F
1,268 5,029
2,884 5,600

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no further
impairment of trade receivables is necessary as there was no
recent history of default in respect of these trade receivables.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 22,

ARREERR BABRERESK
EHRTE-—THE DRARERWES
BRIA ST I M AR HE R 2 RO R

ZERBBRLFEHIIBZHMERE

LOSS
2008 2007
—EBN\E _—TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Held for trading FHEBEE
Equity securities, listed in Hong Kong 3,951 - BARES  RES LT
Market value of listed securities 3,951 — +th&ESHFoME
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) ASSOCIATES 23. Bgl&/ (Ef ) BRELATRIE

The amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM AN INVESTEE COMPANY AND A 24,

MINORITY SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amounts due from an investee company and a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

FEU, (FEA) B & A R IR R AR
RERBEREE-

BEZRBELFRMELF DB
L3 3]
RBRZRERAMMBARLBRRZ
AR EAER ’9“3%&%?%?1%*
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B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008  EEENFUA=THLEFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 HeRBR&FEEH

The Group The Company
Xx5H ELQH
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ETN\FE —ZTTL+F ZEEBNF —_TT+F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT FHET FATT
Cash at banks and in hand 22,002 14,940 124 7,327 WITRFERS
Short-term bank deposits 12,617 13,487 - — ERTTIE R
34,619 28,427 124 7,327

REBZRTERRTERTEBEFRR
PEZRITERAARETARE DFHE

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is
HK$3,140,000 (2007: HK$2,346,000) of bank balances

denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks in the
PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.

The effective interest rate of the fixed rate short-term bank
deposits ranged from 1.3% to 1.62% (2007: 2.8% to 4.7%)
per annum. These deposits have maturity periods ranging from
1 to 30 days (2007: 2 to 30 days) on inception and are eligible
for immediate cancellation without receiving any interest for the
last deposit period.

ZSR1T IR & A5 843,140,000 T (—Z T F
+F 2,346,000 ) c ARMEIIER] B
MRz B

TFEEHRTERZEBINEXEEN T
13E E162FE (Z 2T tF : 2.8F £4.7
B) ZEGFRZHFERBHIN TF1E30
K(ZEZTHF :2830K) WA
B —F R EEMAF B 2 G4 T B

26. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. FEEHE AR XM 6E (AR
2008 2007
—EBENFE —"TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FABT
Accrued charges 3,616 2,840 JEFEMA
Commission payable 13,094 7,270  EREE
Receipt in advance 606 71 FEUWERK
17,316 10,181
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27. BANK LOAN (SECURED) 27. |ITHEK(FEM)
2008 2007
—ETNE _—_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET TBT
Bank loan was repayable RITERER T HARE(E
as follows: =
Within one year 143 109 —F A
In the second year 148 112 B _F
In the third to fifth year 475 378 E-EFRF
Wholly repayable within five years 766 599 T ERNEHEER
After the fifth year 2,812 3,098 HF 1%
3,578 3,697
Less: Current portion due W R — FE R B HANE 5
within one year included nBEEZ
under current liabilities (143) (109) ik P2
Non-current portion included FIEIE MBI BEZIERED
under non-current liabilities 3,435 3,588 2B

The bank loan is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and its
effective interest rate ranged from 3.25% to 5.5% (2007: 5.25%

to 5.5%) per annum.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the bank loan approximate to their fair values at

the balance sheet date.

The bank loan is secured by operating lease prepayments
and building held by the Group with carrying values of
approximately HK$3,661,000 and HK$1,712,000 respectively
as at 30 April 2008, interest bearing at the bank’s best lending
rate less 2.5% per annum and repayable in installments over a

period of 20 years.

RITERUBLIE ERZEEFEX
= ¢ 7 %3.25F 55 (Z T ZE £ ¢
5.25[8 £5.5F) °

ARBEFEFRR REER RITEXK
ZHEREERE A FERLD-

R-ZZEZENFWA=+H SELITERD
LA AN £ @ A7 45 BR T 1B 5 Bl 493,661,000/8
7T %1,712,0008 T2 L& A EFE 5718
NEFEERT RETREZEERAEX
BF B2.5[E 51 8 0 I 7B 7204 # R 5 8
BiE -

Annual Report 2008 —=ZE/\F £



B M Intelligence International Limited 3 2 ES& E K 5 R 2 7

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the year ended 30 April 2008  EEENFUA=THLEFE

28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 28. MEHEXRIE

Present value
Minimum of minimum

lease lease
payments payments
=RME 2
RERAS ZBE
2007 2007
“EBEELFE ST LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
The obligations under finance leases BEMREREEN
are payable as follows: MIBAT :
Within one year 133 120 —FR
In the second to fifth year E_EERF
inclusive 221 200 (BREEREWME)
354 320
Less: Future finance charges (34) W BEREER
Present value of lease obligations 320 HEREZRE
Less: Amount due for settlement within R —FRIEEE
one year shown under current WHERE BB
liabilities (120) 238
Amount due for settlement after one year shown R—FZEIHEEL T E
under non-current liabilities 200 EREBAE KA
The Group has repaid all the finance leases obligations during AEEBRHBEEZE_ZETENFHEA=+AHIE
the year ended 30 April 2008. FEDEEMAMEMERE-
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29.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The Group

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current year:

S

29,

B R M

“ETE N\FMA=THILFE

i BE 1R IR

*5KHE
RAFERRZIZREERBAR (B
E)REBREHNT :

Taxable
temporary
differences
ERREE
HEH
HK$’000

T

Tax losses

MIEGHA
HK$’000
TETT

Total

h
HK$°000
FHT

At 1 May 2007 -

Charged/(credited) to income
for the year 31

31)

- R-IZEZTLFHA—H
BEHkE (BFA)
— REREKA

At 30 April 2008 31

(31)

— R-_FETZNEFEOA=1H

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$6,048,000 (2007: HK$5,719,000) available
for offset against future profits that are subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax. The deferred tax asset had been recognised for
the year in respect of approximately HK$31,000 (2007: Nil)
of such losses. The remaining deferred tax asset in respect
of tax losses amounted to approximately HK$1,027,000
(2007: HK$1,001,000) and deductible temporary differences of
HK$10,000 (2007: HK$69,000) has not been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

In addition to the above, the Group had unused tax losses
arising through its PRC subsidiaries of approximately
HK$449,000 (2007: HK$3,815,000) that will expire in five years
from the dates the losses were incurred. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams of the PRC subsidiaries.

REERBEREHME -
REEBHEE-

EEMBEE

REER AEEZAPARBEBEY
6,048,000/ jt (ZZTZT £ : 5,719,000/
TR REEKEBEMNEENEH Z K
FEF o F A B S E B 4931,00008 7T
TETLF R )DHAELHBEEE -
B K TE 5T R SR B SRR - ML I
BE T IE B9 48 491,027,000 B T (Z 2 E +
£ 11,001,000/ 7T ) N ] #0060 B 14 = 58
10,0007 7t (Z =T+ 4F : 69,000/ 7T ) M
RE G ZELFHBEE -

B £ SCRTA E Hh - AR SR A P B R
) i ER K By F B IA S 18 49449,0008
T(ZZEZT+ 4 :3,815000%F ) B
BEAREREZBRFTLFRNIE-
m R EE TR A P BB A A2 R K A
KR - U W EERELENRAEE -
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/=

NEOA=TRHILEEE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. X
2008 2007
i 3183 3 3
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B8 E &8 R EE ik ]
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Ordinary shares of SREBOIETY
HK$0.01 each LEk
Authorised: EERA
At 1 May 1,000,000,000 10,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 REA—H
Increase during the year (note (i)) 9,000,000,000 90,000 - - FREM HZD)
At 30 April 10,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 RIUA=1H
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 May 452,720,000 4,527 341,020,000 3,410 RAEA—H
Shares issued in placing arrangement REERHEETL
(note (ii)) 90,000,000 900 74,200,000 742 B (B et )
Bonus shares issued (note (iii)) 1,358,160,000 13,582 - - KRBT (02
Shares issued on exercise of share RATEE R T
options (note (iv)) - - 37,500,000 375 2 (i)
At 30 April 1,900,880,000 19,009 452,720,000 4,527 RMUA=+H
Notes: Bt
(i) By an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on (i) BER—BR_ZTZLtENA-+TILBRTZEK

29 August 2007, the Company’s authorised share capital was increased to
HK$100,000,000 by the creation of an additional 9,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company in all respect.

(ii) On 22 February 2007, pursuant to a placing agreement between the Company
and a placing agent, the Company issued an aggregate of 74,200,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.218 per share to

independent third parties.

On 4 December 2007, pursuant to a placing agreement between the Company
and a placing agent, the Company issued an aggregate of 90,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.209 per share to
independent third parties.
(iii) On 10 September 2007, bonus shares were issued on the basis of 3 bonus
shares for every 1 existing share of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company
by capitalisation of an amount of HK$13,582,000 from the share premium
account.
(iv) Such increase in share capital represented the shares issued on exercise of
share options, granted under the Company’s share option scheme as stated in
note 33 to the financial statements.

Annual Report 2008

BB \FEH

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

REFRGMBAZ T BRER  BEEREHN
9,000,000,0000% G AR EE0.018 T2 @A « 15K
R A2 EE A INE 100,000,000 7T + RETE T
EEARRREZ EBREGRSHAL

R-IZETLF-_A-+=-A  BEARE—ZRE
EREBITLZ —HEEHE  ARRGRRKRN
0.21878 70 2 BAR A8 3 55 = 5 8174 #£74,200,000
B S EEO.018 7T 2 7 @Ak o

R-ZTTLE+_AMB REAQFAE—F
RERBILZ —HEREHHE ARAKRER
B 1502008 T2 BRABLE=HBETEH
90,000,0000% & % T E0.01/8 0 Z 3T & @A -

RZZETEFhLA+H BBRMDEERPER
1£13,582,000% 7T + 7 & @ JA TR A 2 7] IR A
BREEOTVET ZRAMRN 5 BIE 5 K3 AL AR
ZEAREBATLIA ©

BB R A SE AN AR B 9T 00 1R 45 B 75 9 % MY RSB
AR B BT BRI B AR 81T 2 AR o
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For the year ended 30 April 2008

31. RESERVES 31.

Share option  Accumulated

Share premium reserve losses Total
KRR MR G OR RiER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET FERT FERT
At 1 May 2006 27,180 162 (15,398) 11,944 RZBEERFRA—H
Shares issued at premium 16,464 - - 16,464  RHEBEERTRG
Shares issue expense (455) - - (455)  EITRMHEX
Equity-settled share based payment PARR AR £ B3 A B 17 1 3
expenses - 1,983 - 1,983 vl 53
Exercise of share option 316 (316) - - IFERE
Share option lapsed during the year - @ 2 - FRRBzERE
Loss for the year - - (2,743) @743 EFEREE
At 30 April 2007 43,505 1,827 (18,139 27,193 NR-_BEELFNA=1H
At 1 May 2007 43,505 1,827 (18,139 27,193 NZBEE+FRA—H
Shares issued at premium 17,910 - - 17910 BREETRH
Shares issue expense (550) - - (550)  E{TRMEX
Share premium transferred to share BTUREEERAZ
capital upon issue of bonus shares (18,582 - - (13,582) fni B
Loss for the year - - (1,192) (1,192) EREE
At 30 April 2008 47,283 1,827 (19,331) 29,779 R-ZEENEMA=+H

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company is also available
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company is MEEERNTERNAEBSIRB % e
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course REREE XK EREPINHEERGE
of business immediately following the date on which any such 7 o

distribution is proposed to be paid.

RERSHBRRE ARRZRME
ERMADEKTRE ERARBEARE
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E-TENAENASTALSE

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32. EEHAKE
At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease REER ANEBBRERIEMEZT
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of AREECEHEMAEI N Z RRFEM
its office premises are payable by the Group as follows: DHEBENT
2008 2007
—EENFE —_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FABT
Within one year 5,812 3,013 —F R
In the second to fifth FEZERF (BEER
year inclusive 6,327 1,975 )
12,139 4,988
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEBRELEHEHHETYWE-F
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to three BROVNS AR —E=F - LEHAHH
years. None of the leases include contingent rentals. EefExgalEe -
At 30 April 2008, the Company had no commitments under RZEEN\FNA=1+H AR AW E
operating leases (2007: Nil). KEHERE(ZZZEF &) o
33. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 33. LEBRGAZHZEENS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 29 August 2002 (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the Directors may grant options to (i) any
eligible employee (means any employee, whether full time or
part time employee, including any executive directors and non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
and any invested entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any invested entity; (iii) any
customer of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person
or entity that provides research, development or technological
support or other services to the Group or any invested entity;
and (v) any shareholder or any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known
as the “Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity. The period of
the Scheme shall not be more than ten years from the date of
adoption of the Scheme.

Annual Report 2008 —=ZE/\F &%

ARABAIRE-—BER_ZEZT_F N\ A
THARBBZAERRMN —EERE
B8 D RS - EFATET
TIATREBEBREARBAQRKND ()
AR -EFWHERR MR E TR
2HAMAEERES BEMEZ B ER
B8 BECHANITEENIENTES):
iy ANEBIMRKE QXA TMATRE
EREESRIRSE 2 EAHEER (i)
AEEFEMAKEERB2AWNEER  (iv)
MAEBREMATIREETRREMHFR
FEREMYESEMRS 2 E/AL
HEE: RWAEE ST EEE
ZEMBERSIKEXAEBEMKE R
RIRAEMAREEERTZ2EMNESRZ
ERFEEA(FEBE2E2E] T2 Z8
ML EBR2EEH ANEBIEZ &
fEH S Bk 88 & S fF A EBME LR
EBERBBEFSEE Y RANEAERR
TR EEREMEEEZANER.
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33.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont’d)

As at 30 April 2008, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Scheme was 280,000,000 (2007: 280,000,000 (restated))
representing 14.73% (2007: 15.46%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the date of the approval of the Scheme, unless
approved by the Company’s shareholders. In addition, the
maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted under
the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors of the Company, or any of their respective
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option
period to be determined by the directors is at their absolute
discretion shall not be more than 10 years after the date of the
grant of the share option (“ Option Period ). Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the Option Period after the option has been granted. The
exercise price should not be less than (i) the highest of the nominal
value of the Company 's shares; (ii) the closing price of the
Company s share on the date of grants, which must be a trading
day; or (i) the average of the closing prices of the Company 's
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

I

33.

M B R M

“ETE N\FMA=THILFE

LEinRtizERABE ()
RZZENFWA=+H BEFE2
BEMERTEZBEREMRM SR 2R
7 8 B 5280,000,0000% (— T & + F :
280,000,000% (&£ &E %)) (R AR B R EZ
HEIR BTN 214.73% (T T+ F ¢
15.46% ) ° FrIEEB AR B R R E - 1R
Bt FREZERESRZKRHE
HAEBBANT NI ETEEBD %
THRD Z10% ° bt Hh - BB EITE R E
FHEIE T M R ITE 2 B AR T AT T g
TZARRABIBRMER LR TE3BBA
NETHE TG 230% ° B I f[12
& A B Al m ] A TR 2 B R
BRZBHOBETHBBBARRRREINM
BTN Z1% - MEA a T &
MR BYIIFRATESTRIAFEEZE
ZHMBAREZEBEREBBEARAKRA
20.1% % {8 {& #B 185,000,000/ 7t © 8 &%
BEBSKAARBRELE -

PR z B ILHE 8 A IR I B HR #E28 K
HEMAEREN MEBRENERERE
BB - BRESNEDAES2ER
BET HARAELERELBERFTT
SEBE10F ((BRESMD -BHER
% B B AR B AR BB AT
EERBER FTUITFE - THEETEFER
UWTZ&HZE&ESE  ()ARARKRMOEE:
E2BROABEHEBH(MBEAERS
B)ZUWH B Si)yARFRGDRBER
HEHRIRERS B2 FHRTE-
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33. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont’d) 33. LEGKXFFZEEME ()
The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TEREEBEL2HEMBARAIBEREZ
options held by the Participants and movements in such BEREBBERERAEE 28

holdings during the year:

Cancelled/Lapsed Issue of bonus
Outstanding Granted during Exercised during during the year ~ Outstanding shares during  Outstanding
Exercise at the yearended  the year ended ended 30 April at the year ended at
price 1 May 2006 30 April 2007 30 April 2007 2007 30 April 2007 30 April 2008 30 April 2008
REE-2BtE
RISBAE REEZSTLE REECSSt MAZTHLEE R-SStE REEZSENF RISENE
ERA—-HAf% HMAZ+HLEE FMAZ+AHL MW/ MAZ+H® MAZ+ALEE MA=Z+AR
TR {7 & ket FERTHE b3 RITHE B ITHL R RITHE
Directors
EE
LO Wah Wai 0.0613** 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 30,000,000 40,000,000
EER 0.0700 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000)* - - -
0.0450 8,000,000 - - (8,000,000)* - - -
0.0360 15,000,000 - (15,000,000) - - - -
0.0100** - 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 75,000,000 100,000,000
43,000,000 25,000,000 (15,000,000) (18,000,000) 35,000,000 105,000,000 140,000,000
WONG Wai Tung 0.0388 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000)* - - -
TEE 0.0250 200,000 - (200,000 - - - -
0.0500 - 500,000 (500,000 - - - -
3,200,000 500,000 (700,000 (3,000,000 - - -
46,200,000 25,500,000 (15,700,000) (21,000,000) 35,000,000 105,000,000 140,000,000
Others 0.0613** 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 30,000,000 40,000,000
Ht 0.0700 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000)* - - -
0.0388 10,500,000 - - (10,500,000)* - - -
0.0450 8,000,000 - - (8,000,000)* - - -
0.0360 15,000,000 - (15,000,000) - - - -
0.0250 2,200,000 - (1,800,000 (400,000)* - - -
0.0100™* - 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 75,000,000 100,000,000
0.0500 - 5,000,000 (5,000,000 - - - -
55,700,000 30,000,000 (21,800,000) (28,900,000) 35,000,000 105,000,000 140,000,000
101,900,000 55,500,000 (37,500,000) (49,900,000) 70,000,000 210,000,000 280,000,000
The share options were forfeited by the employees during the year ended 30 * BRERNEE_STLFENA=ZTALEERARK
April 2007. BB
The share options lapsed upon the resignation of the employees from the Group. d ANEE (R B BB M AR 2 WA -
Following the issue of bonus shares on 10 September 2007, the exercise i BER_TZZLFNATHBTAR BRRE
prices of the share options were adjusted from HK$0.2450 and HK$0.0400 2 171E (B 9 5 10.24507% 7T 20.04007 JT # 2 =
to HK$0.0613 and HK$0.0100 respectively. The number of outstanding share 0.06137% 7T 520.01007% 7T ° i & 17 £ 8 A% 4% 75
options was also adjusted as a result of the issue of bonus shares. TR M EL -
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33.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont’d)
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

BE_ZT)/\FHUA=1TBLFE

33. LM ZzEAME ()
FrEBBERENZFBOT

Exercise price Date of grant

Exercise period

TR FHAM TERRE

HK$

BT

0.0613*** 29 August 2002 29 August 2002 to 28 August 2012
ZEE-FNAZ+AE ZEEZFNAZTAAEZZ—Z=—F/A\A=+NH

0.0700 11 August 2003 11 August 2003 to 10 August 2013
—EE=FNA+—H —EE=FNA+—BE=ZE—Z=FN\ATH

0.0388 8 October 2003 8 October 2003 to 7 October 2013
—E2=F+ANA “EF=F+ANAE-F-=F+ALA

0.0450 25 August 2004 25 August 2004 to 24 August 2014
—EEMENAZ+HEA Z—ZEEEFNAZTHRAE_ZT-EWFENAZTEA

0.0360 29 August 2005 29 August 2005 to 28 August 2015
—EERENAZTAR ZEERAFNAZ+TABREZE_ZE-—RE/NAZTNR

0.0250 9 December 2005 9 December 2005 to 8 December 2015
—ZEERFETZANAB —EERAF+ZANBEZZE—RAFE+ZANAR

0.0100*** 30 August 2006 30 August 2006 to 29 August 2016
—EERFENA=ZTH —EERFENAZFTREZZE—R"FENAZ+NH

0.0500 27 September 2006 27 September 2006 to 26 September 2016

“ERRFAA-TLR

The options vest on the date of grant.

—EERFNAAZTEREZE—R"FNLA=-+H

BREDRELBHEY -

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options.

There are 190,088,000 ordinary shares, which represent 10%
of the issued share capital, available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme at the date of this annual report.

The closing price of the shares of the Company quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 29 August 2006 and 26 September
2006, being the business date immediately before the date on
which share options were granted, was HK$0.07 and HK$0.05
respectively. The weighted average closing price of the shares
of the Company quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised was
HK$0.11.

FrE AR X 2 R BB & AR A
M- AKBEBELRREERHKELD N
XA REAE

PR BERFERBE  RIFBEREEA
1 2% 17 2 3B A% /190,088,0000% @ 15 2
ﬁﬁx7-L<210% o

RRABBROR T NENA-T+IE
FZEEXFAAZ+ B (BEEE
BERHBE A2 &% R )EB AT
2 W8 5 Bl A0.077 7T K%0.0578 7T °
AR OREEBRETEZ B8
TE B X BT P 3R 2 0 # F 35 Uk T B 20.11

BT e
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33.

34.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont’d)

The fair values of options granted under the Scheme on 30
August 2006 and 27 September 2006, measured at the date
of grant, were approximately HK$1,827,000 and HK$156,000
respectively. The following significant assumptions were used
to derive the fair values, using the Black-Scholes-Merton
Option Pricing Model:

I

33.

“ETE N\FMA=THILFE

LEinRtizERABE ()

}5/\—? 7/\¢j\ﬁ +E|&—? 7/\$
NAZT+EARBHERD ZBERE
ZAFEUELHBFAFE) DDA
1,827,000/ 7T % 156,000/ 7T ° A F B LA
(MAH7 — FRET JHEEEEALIET
TERBRTE

Date of grant 30 August 2006 27 September 2006
—EETRE ZEEXRE
EHAH INB=+H hB=++tH
Volatility (based on the historical g (REBEEERE
price volatility of the closing price H Hi 2 26018 32 %
of the shares in the Company for BARE RGO KTE
260 trading days up to the date ZBERERR
of grant) 157.49% 157.15% E)
Exercise price HK$0.01%5 7T HK$0.05/ 87T  17fF(E
(restated)
(&)
Expected option period (in years) 1 1 JEEEREEME REE)
Risk free rate (adjusted regarding fm J3 b ) X
the expected life) 3,860% 3.699% (RFEFFHARE)
Expected dividend yield Nil f NilfE  FEHfR B =

No employee compensation expense has been included in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 April
2008 (2007: HK$1,983,000) with a corresponding credit in
equity. No liabilities were recognised as they were all equity-
settled share-based payment transactions.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of HK$858,000 (2007: HK$649,000) represents contributions
payable to the retirement benefits schemes by the Group in
respect of the current accounting period. As at 30 April 2008,
contributions of approximately HK$120,000 (2007: HK$65,000)
due in respect of the reporting period had not been paid over
to the retirement benefits schemes.

34.

TEEEME2MI(ZZTZT £ F:
1,983,000 L) E R EBEEZE T N\F WM
A=Z+tRLEFEzZHEEKEER  LAE
SFAEREA- mmuiﬁﬁiiﬁﬁw&ﬁ
HETUARAINZR S @t # &R
RIEMEE-

:’E’Pkiﬁll*’ri'l

WT:.LIAZ § 3R P 1B 2 48 Ak 7X858,000/8
T (ZZT T4 : 649,000/ 7T ) 5 A £ E
mAE +HﬂFﬁrEH KB Z K -
F_??/\imﬂ + 8 BEREM
B R 2 30 49120,0008 ¢ (Z T T+ 4F ¢
65,0008 7T ) I K 14 F iR K& Fl 51 &) -
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For the year ended 30 April 2008  EEENFUA=THLEFE
35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 35. GEBeRERME
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBEAR
2008
—ETN\E
HK$°000
T#T
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE:
Property, plant and equipment 79 W% WEKRE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 634 %% FENFRIEREAMEWERE
Cash and cash equivalents 49 ReRkBAeLEEEE
Accrued charges and other payables (634) EERANKEMENERIE
Minority interests 9 LHEBFES
119
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1 PE—HRBAR K
Total consideration 120 @R (E
Satisfied by: YRR
Cash 120 R4
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in FELE-—RHENBARIZR e RRSE
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: BEEEREFEZOMBAT :
2008
—ETN\E
HK$’000
THET
Cash consideration 120 IBHEHKE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (49) EHERSABESEEEE
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents 71 Re MRS EERRE FHE
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For the year ended 30 April 2008 (ZE_ZET N\FHA=THLEE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BAEALTEZS
(a) Related party transactions (a) REALEXS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed MRUBRRRITEEZR S &R
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had N REBRNERNDHET N5 EGE
the following related party transactions during the year: ALER S :
Name of related party Nature of transactions 2008 2007
FREALTRE XHHE —EENEF —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FB T
BMI Appraisals Limited, an Service income received
associate of the Group by the Group
RRHBEFEARA
(REEBERF]) 7 & E B WCEUR 5 A 20 600
BMI Surveyors Limited, an Service income received
associate of the Group by the Group
FERER R EA/MTT
(REEBERA]) 7N & E B WCEUR 7 A — 126

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Service income received

Limited (note) by the Group
EREETREHAER A A & B B WEUR
(K7 5t) A 800 —

Outstanding balance arising from
the services received included in
trade receivable (note 21)

W ER AR 745 P E A R AN R AR

(BEREWRE 5RIE)HF21) 800 —

Note: Mr. Lo Wah Wai, a former director of the Company who resigned on 27 Mt AR TZE\J§$F§J’X§‘E?& (BER=ZTTN\FH
May 2008, has beneficial interests in this company. AZ++tBEE)EmEGILAT -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) I;EEAEEIQ _

The key management personnel of the Group are AEEZEREEABANARRE
the directors of the Company. The remuneration of Z-FREBARZME A HH
the key management personnel is determined by ZEEREMEMNATZERRRT iz
the remuneration committee having regard to the BEET XM TREZMEFE
performance of individuals and market trends. Details of NIRRT »

the remuneration paid to them are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUA=TRHLFE
37. SUBSIDIARIES 37. WELT
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30 RZEZENFOA=Z+H ARFIZE
April 2008 are as follows: EMBARFBERT
Nominal value
of issued
Place of ordinary capital  Proportion of nominal value
incorporation  Kind of / registered  of issued capital held by the  Principal activities and
Name of company / registration  legal entity capital Company place of operations
BRTEER
BRI/ B /iEmE ERRBAERT
LEER gt ERRBER HME BEEELE IERBRERBE
Directly Indirectly
EE [ &
BMI Consultants Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$6 - 100% Business, accounting and
company corporate development
advisory services,
Hong Kong
REERBERERAA EE BEREAAA 68T % g AR BREN
R &E
BM Intelligence Limited British Virgin  Limited liability US$20,000 100% - Investment holding,
Islands company Hong Kong
HERLHE BRALAA 20,000% 7T REER BE
BMI Corporate Services Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100% Company secretarial
Limited company services, Hong Kong
REERNERMERAR FE BEREAAA 1007% 7T RAMERYE BA
IBC Corporate Services Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100% Company secretarial
Limited company services, Hong Kong
BREFLEWERS B BREERAA 1T RAMERSE BF
BRARF
BMI Funds Management Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,000,000 - 100% Funds management services,
Limited company Hong Kong
RBERESERERAR FE BEREAAA 1,000,000% 7T EeERRE &E
BMI Professional Translation ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100% Translation services, Hong
Services Limited company Kong
ARERZXBEERAR T BREERATA 1007% 7T BERY AF
BMI Technologies Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100% Information technology
company consulting services, Hong
Kong
BEERMBEERAF B BEREAAA 1007% 7T BARBEARYE B4
BMI Strategic Marketing Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100% Marketing services, Hong
Limited company Kong
BEELTZREHE B BEREMERAHA 18T mHEERY  &E

BRAF
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For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE-_ZETEN\FUA=1+AHLFE
37. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 37. BMBATFE ()
Nominal value
of issued
Place of ordinary capital  Proportion of nominal value
incorporation  Kind of / registered  of issued capital held by the  Principal activities and
Name of company / registration legal entity capital Company place of operations
ERTHER
101394 % 38 FARREERT
EE ] B B ERERER *EE BFmELLG IERBRERBE
Directly Indirectly
E& [ &
-
BMI Professional Services British Virgin  Limited liability Us$1 - 100% Company secretarial
Limited Islands company services, Hong Kong
EEEXHS BAREAERA 1% RAMERSE BE
BM Union Communication Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,000 - 80% Public relations services,
Limited company Hong Kong
AEMEEABERAF 2 BREERA 1,000% 7T RERE BE
BZR Capital Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,500,000 — 60% Corporate advisory service,
company Hong Kong
AEERREBERAF G BEREAAA 1,500,0007% 7T RABERRY  BE
BMI Consultant (Shenzhen)  the PRC Wholly owned HK$2,000,000 - 100% Business, accounting and
Limited foreign corporate development
investment advisory services,
enterprises the PRC
BERER ORI e NEBERE 2,000,0007% 7T ES AR YN
BRAT ¥ HREMRE FE
BMI Corporate Advisory the PRC Wholly owned US$350,000 - 100% Business, accounting and
(Shanghai) Limited foreign corporate development
investment advisory services,
enterprises the PRC
RBERBBEA (L) i SNEEERE 350,000% 7T % @ RAF
BRAT i+ FRERRS T
Note: Kt
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, FRINHEZRAEAEERAFELEEZEATEZEIRN
principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion FRERACSBEEFBEEES D 2ASENB AR - &
of the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details of other subsidiaries =2A FEHEEHEBARZ HBEESATBRAE -

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the end of the year or at RERIRFREMAERE HMENEA TS TOERE
any time during the year. % o
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
to analyse and formulate strategies to manage and monitor the
Group’s exposure to a variety of risks associated with financial
instruments which arise form the Group’s operating and
investing activities. Generally, the Group employs conservative
strategies regarding its risk management to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to these risks are mitigated are described as
follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong
and most of the transactions are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and RMB. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group had neither engaged in any derivative activities
nor committed to any financial instruments to hedge
its balance sheet exposures. The directors consider
the Group’s foreign exchange risk to be minimal. A
reasonable change in exchange rate in the next twelve
months is assessed to result in immaterial change in the
Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses. Changes
in exchange rates have no impact on the Group’s other
components of equity.

Interest rate risk

Long term borrowings at variable interest rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and those at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposure
on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of
borrowings when necessary. A reasonable change in
interest rate in the next twelve months is assessed to
result in immaterial change in the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses. Changes in interest rates have
no impact on the Group’s other components of equity.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum credit exposure of the financial
assets as at 30 April 2008 equals to their carrying
amounts. The Group’s financial assets are summarised in
note (g) below. The Group’s trade and other receivables
are actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations
of credit risk. The Group limits its exposure to credit
risk by prudently selecting its customers with careful
assessment of their credit worthiness and financial
background. No other financial assets carry a significant
exposure to credit risk. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

M B R M

BE_ZT)/\FHUA=1TBLFE

38.

MERBREEERRBE
AEBAYEFITRX ZBREEBRR K

?E%I A EBEEEEHOAMER LT
DAL HEREE UEREREFEAREE
raZIARARER BERBRAEEEE

RIREBEEKR LB IE —Ms ' &N
ilﬁﬂ—\,fﬁﬁwfi%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ”ﬂi LA B IR
LKA FEIGEE R BZESR

IE*QE@ZH 2 R anfal e A itk SRR 2
BRI 0T
(a) SrERBE

REBFENRBTBETER  KE
’““%ﬁl«hﬁﬁ&)\ﬁmnﬂﬁ Z’S
SEEBEENRBEEZZAE T
B REBWERETAITEE
SFEATHNER T A PHEEE
BEXREAR EERRAREE A
R ZAMERBARR - AR R+ Z1E
AMEZzABEEHRWTTHLRE
Z%ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬂé)}%ﬁgﬂéﬁﬂ
BEREH - EXFPHHAEEER
Zﬁi\miﬁﬂ*ﬁﬁl,\%@"

(b) FIHRE
EFPMNE s RBEERELREER
ﬁﬁ;iﬁibwéﬂj?ﬂ i ﬁﬁ/E\-.)?'E
MEZERABEEAESE@RE R
B 2 E by o AR AR B A
EXEE VTR KERAREER
G RARTZEANE & BE
BT CHAEE R EEBE
REGEHEREIRERNES) - EXF
@£$El%‘ZEm@W%
RIS

(c) EERME
REBZHEEER_TENF
WMA=ZtTHZz&EmEERBES
REREE AEBZHBEEEM
BT XM FE(g) - A& E = 1) &
%Eﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ LA 3t 2,
CSERBRBMHES - AEBEEENK
BERP UWHETIHHEEERY
SER AEBUYBEMPKEE
EEREERR MEBHEFRZ
EERB -
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38.

Annual Report 2008

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks.
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because most of the Group’s bank deposits are
deposited with major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of
the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial
instruments. The fair values of non-current financial
assets and liabilities were not disclosed because these
are not materially different from their carrying amounts.

Other pricing risk

The Group has invested in listed equity securities which
are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk.
The Group monitors the price movements and takes
appropriate actions when it is required. A reasonable
change in equity price in the next twelve months is
assessed to result in immaterial change in the Group’s
loss after tax and accumulated losses. Changes in equity
prices have no impact on the Group’s other components
of equity.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group has net current assets
of HK$33,529,000 (2007: HK$25,966,000) and net assets
of HK$52,820,000 (2007: HK$36,996,000) as at 30 April
2008 respectively. In the opinion of directors, the Group’s
exposure to liquidity risk is limit.

BB \FEH

Hz-TT

— ==

NEOR=+HIFE

38. MERRETEEAMARKE (|)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

EEEE (|)
AEBREZRBTHFERRE - AR
REBZBTERDERREER
PEZEERIT BORE RBITHE
HEERBER -

LFEE
ARREFRA/AKENFTERT
EBASxNEHRRNINE  #ORH
MHEERBEZAFERARE
BZARETEKR SHRIFRE
MBEERBEZAFERERRE
BEDRIAK M EWAFHBE -

Hfth 5 4% B2
AEERENKEEBIRQFER
B2 EMEARZES Bt A&EE
AFRAEREAR NEEERE
REE TEEFERRIEET
HoRART_EAREzZAREE
BRAEHAEEZBRREBER
RItBELEEANEE - REZ
BASEED 2 EMARE D I E

B2 488
e e

REE & R
AEBZHRNDTHEZERDE
CHE BREFBTEVESREE
ENEBEEHZRSHEST K-
AEBR-_ZETZENFNA=+HZ
B E F1E 533,529,000/8 7T (=
TE 4 : 25,966,00008 T ) L& E
E B 9 7l A52,820,000/% 7T (= &
T+ 4 36,996,000/ T ) - EER
B ALEEMHZABESCRARE
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For the year ended 30 April 2008  EEENFUA=THLEFE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. MERBEEEEEREE (8)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Liquidity risk (Cont’d) ) KROZIELEE E)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRHANAEEFETEHBAR
maturities at each of the balance sheet dates of the REFEEBZHBREHINHER -
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are TRBFORUEBRR S RE (BE
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including RETROR RN (B RZE)RELE
interest payment computed using contractual rates or, HEHZAHANEAEZFE S H)
if floating, based on current rates at the balance sheet RAEBEAEAENRZHE AH
date) and the earliest date the Group may be required to m&H :
pay:
As at 30 April 2008 RZFENFMHA=+H
More than
Total 3 months More than
contractual Within butless 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 3 months or than less than Over
amount cash flow on demand 1 year 5years 5 years
R=@EAAR BE=EA B
HESES:' ) B fE Br —F8Rr
BEE ReREAH BEX —FR IFERN BBILF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THET TET TET THET FTHET
Accrued charges and e &R REN
commission payables 16,710 16,710 16,710 - - - e
RITER
Bank loan (secured) 3,578 4,766 64 193 1,031 3,478 (B#EH)
20,288 21,476 16,774 193 1,031 3,478
As at 30 April 2007 R-CFEF+FPNA=—+H
Total More than3  More than
contractual Within  months but 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 3 months or less than less than Over
amount cash flow on demand 1 year 5 years 5 years
BiE=1EA il
SHNARME R=ZEAR BR  —FER
RHE RenEA% HEEX —FR TERN  HRERF
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FATT TAT THET THET TR TAT
Accrued charges and At B R RER
commission payables 10,110 10,110 10,110 - - - Ae
Amount due to an e B A A T
associate 28 28 28 - - - nIE
RITER
Bank loan (secured) 3,697 6,145 76 233 1,262 4,574 (BEH)
Obligations under finance
leases 320 354 33 100 221 - ®BEHEAE
14,155 16,637 10,247 333 1,483 4,574
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For the year ended 30 April 2008 E_EZN\FOA=FTRHILFE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. HMERASETEEHEEREE ()
POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category (90 NEMBIERAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets AEEREERERRCMBGEE
and liabilities as recognised at the balance sheet dates REREEERBERTNIERE S 0
are categorised as follows. See notes 3.11 and 3.16 for %IE/\*EZZD{"J TEHEZFEZ
explanations about how the categorisation of financial i B P B 3.1 123.16 ©

instruments affects their subsequent measurements.

Group Company
AKRE -3/ ]|
2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENF —_TTLHF ZBBNF _—_TITLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THETT T#ET THTT

Financial assets MEEE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,177 455 - — AHEEMEKEE
Loans and receivables: B EWRERE
Rental deposits 2,486 1,066 - — Heke
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BRBTEATE
through profit or loss 3,951 — - — PR IS E E
Loans and receivables: B EWRERE
Trade receivables 2,884 5,600 - — EUWE 5ERE
B e & H A eI
Deposits and other receivables 7,981 1,258 - — AR 18
Amount due from a subsidiary - — 49,085 24,505 JE WL BT /B8~ B 5B
Amounts due from associates 490 864 - - JE W Bk & R B SRR
Amount due from an investee
company 1,005 — - - Y ZEE AFIFIEA
Amount due from a minority FEU B~ 7l A 8
shareholder of a subsidiary 337 346 - = fig B8 K18
Cash and cash equivalents 34,619 28,427 124 7,327 BERIRLEEEHR
54,930 38,016 49,209 31,832
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For the year ended 30 April 2008 HE_ZETEN\FUA=TRHLFE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. MERASETEHHEREE ()
POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category (99 PHEMESERAGREE ()
(Cont’d)
Group Company
xHEMH - 3/ |
2008 2007 2008 2007

“EENF —TTLF ZBENFE —TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F B FHET  FERE  FBT

Financial liabilities RBAR
Financial liabilities measured at VAR S5 R N5 2 2 B 7%
amortised costs: afE&:
Current liabilities mERR
Accrued charges and
commission payables 16,710 10,110 722 415 EstERREM A2
Amount due to an FEAT — R B & R A
associate - 28 - — HIE
Bank loan (secured) 143 109 - — RITER (BHEM)
Obligations under finance leases - 120 - — BB EAE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank loan (secured) 3,435 3,588 - - BEMBEITER
Obligations under finance leases - 200 - — A S RE
20,288 14,155 722 415
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39.

40.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal dividend
policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 30 April
2007 and 2008 amounted to approximately HK$36,996,000 and
HK$52,820,000 respectively, which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures
and the projected strategic investment opportunities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 27 May 2008, the Group announced that it had entered
into conditional sale and purchase agreements dated 21 May
2008 with purchasers, which are legally and beneficially owned
by Mr. Lo Wah Wai, a former director of the Company who
resigned on 27 May 2008, in relation to the disposals of the
Group’s entire equity interests in its subsidiary, BMI Funds
Management Limited at the consideration of HK$6.4 million
and 45% equity interest in its associate, Fu Teng Limited at
the consideration of HK$57.5 million.

On 25 June 2008, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party, in relation to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of FD(H)
Investments Limited at a consideration of HK$190 million,
which will be financed partially by cash and partially by issue
of convertible bonds.

I

39.

40.

“ETE N\FMA=THILFE

BREEERERER
AEBERERZBES:

. REANEEFERLLE 28N #E
RBCRE R MR N E ) =4 B
AL R

. MR AKREZRERER R
. REESUMBAKEZ ARERE

ﬁlc °

AEBRGE RN MNEEERNERE
BRABREEARBREHAKERR
E#H TEZEAEBARESFERE
AR RERBRRN D BRE
EREME B E KRR R FER K
HhREKS - $%Eﬁﬁi’ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬂﬂ
EAREEER

EEEREBRABEARAETREZER - H
E_ZTLER_ZTENFWA=T
B BX%& %D B4 436,996,000/ 7T &
52,820,000/ 7L HFERELD ZFE B
Bz EARST RTBRRBEMHERERS -
WRARENREEAMRT -

HEH&SH

R_EENFRA-_+T+tH KEHT
HEARNR —BRAEBTEERTE (B
R-ZZEENFRA-+LEAHET)EE
&E*%ﬁZf‘@’iﬁﬁA*%%/\iﬁﬂ
—t+—BEITAEKHGEEHRE LEX
SEEREMBARILE E%x%é BH
NaEZ T AR E R EEE R AR

Teng Limited 2 45% % # - X & % 5 &
6,400,000/ 7T }57,500,0007% 7T
RZZEZENFARAZ+THH ANEEHA

% = 7 5 W BFD(H) Investments Limited
PHEBRTRATLEEHZ REA
190,000,000/ 7T * 5 A IH & K& 5 MU
BT MR EHF BT -
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Financial Summary

MBRE

RESULTS RiE
Financial year ended 30 April
HEMA=+AZHBEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—E2RRNE Z2TRE ZZERF ZEEEF ZBEBNF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT THT
Revenue 12,202 20,571 42,427 64,952 88,760 Il
Cost of services provided (10,144) (14,649) (28,770) (50,492) (65,543) CIEHARTE Z KA
Gross profit 2,058 5,922 13,657 14,460 23,217 EF
Other operating income 25 292 687 1,273 1,986 H & &S
Gain on disposal of partial HEWB RGBS S
interest in a subsidiary — 3 — — - B a5 2 W s
Release of negative BEEIM B A A
goodwill of a subsidiary 25 — — — - amE
Administrative and T R g
operating expenses (9,260) (10,107) (13,881) (20,900) (37,387) 3
Loss on disposal of short HERBREEZ
term investment = (216) - — - &5 18
Operating profit/(loss) (7,152) (4,106) 463 (5,167) (12,184) &5 7, (E18)
Finance costs 2 ©)] (10) (105) (199) HBER
Gain on disposal of HER
investment in an /N vl
associate - - 29 — - "EzZ W=
Share of results of
associates 456 626 1,295 4,412 9,143 [BE{HEZ NBIHEE
Profit/(Loss) before B P15 B AL
income tax (6,698) (3,489) 1,777 (860) (3,240) @A (EE)
Income tax Fisf (Ax),/
(expense)/credit 15 — - 486 (217) By
Profit/(Loss) for RER®RN
the year (6,683) (3,489) 1,777 (874) (3,457) (E48)
Attributable to: T3 FE4h
Equity holders of the KR AR
Company (6,678) (3,478) 1,826 (365) (3,446) BEA
Minority interests (5) (11) (49) 9) (11) LPERxE#E=
Profit/(Loss) for REEmF
the year (6,683) (3,489) 1,777 (874) (3,457) (E18)
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Financial Summary

MBRE

As at 30 Apiril
®MA=+H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—E2RNE Z2TRE Z2ERF ZZTEF ZBBNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TETT FET T FBT FERT

Total assets 22,301 18,452 28,782 51,313 73,993 BEE
Total liabilities (2,778) (2,394) (10,751) (14,317) (21,173) ©®&fE
Shareholders’ funds 19,523 16,058 18,031 36,996 52,820 B{EES
Notes: Bzt -

The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements. BN AR ERE LS -
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